

        

            

                

            

        




    

    




    [image: The cover of the recommended book]


A History of Long Island, Vol. 1



Ross, Peter

9783849650056

764

Buy now and read (Advertising)

With these books an effort has been made to present the history of the whole of Long Island in such a way as to combine all the salient facts of the long and interesting story in a manner that might be acceptable to the general reader and at the same time include much of that purely antiquarian lore which is to many the most delightful feature of local history. Long Island has played a most important part in the history of the State of New York and, through New York, in the annals of the Nation. It was one of the first places in the Colonies to give formal utterance to the doctrine that taxation without representation is unjust and should not be borne by men claiming to be free—the doctrine that gradually went deep into the hearts and consciences of men and led to discussion, opposition and war; to the declaration of independence, the achievement of liberty and the founding of a new nation. It took an active part in all that glorious movement, the most significant movement in modern history, and though handicapped by the merciless occupation of the British troops after the disaster of August, 1776, it continued to do what it could to help along the cause to which so many of its citizens had devoted their fortunes, their lives. This is volume one out of three, covering the general history of Long Island.
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Patriotism or devotion to one's country is a sentiment. It is not due to self-interest nor other sordid motive, but is born of the story of her origin and of the achievements of the brave and enterprising ancestral stock, which, out of small beginnings, established and organized and wrought a nation. Every great city is in semblance a small nation, both in government and the loyal co-operation of its people for the common good. And the same patriotic devotion, born of the same sentiment does, or should prevail in every city as in every nation. As our civilization grows older our larger cities are taking more interest in the story of their own origin and development, and concerning some of them many historical volumes have been written, dealing with almost every incident of fact and legend that could be traced. And in many notable instances of cities the greater the knowledge of her history, the greater the pride and love and devotion of her people. The city of Memphis, though rated young among her Eastern sisters in America, is yet one of the most ancient, considering the discovery of her site, and the building of the first habitations of the white man here, on the whole American continent. When it is recalled that the adventurous Hernando De Soto built a cantonment for his troops here and established a little ship-yard, in which he constructed four pirogues or barges, large enough to transport across the Mississippi River in time of high water, five hundred Spanish soldiers, as many more Indian vessels and one hundred and fifty horses, with baggage and other military equipment, in a few hours, and that all this occurred seventy-nine years before the landing of the Mayflower at Plymouth Rock and twenty-four years before the building of the first hut and stockade at St. Augustine, Fla., it will be realized that our story dates far back in ancient American history. Following up this fact much space has been given to the wonderful march of De Soto from Tampa Bay, Fla., to the Chickasaw Bluffs, literally hewing his way as he came with sword and halberd through swarming nations of brave Indians; and to showing that he marched directly from the Chickasaw towns in northeast Mississippi to the Chickasaw Bluffs; and to presenting in fullest detail from the Spanish Chroniclers what De Soto and his people did while on the Bluffs where Memphis now stands. And it was deemed proper also to tell with equal detail of the voyages of Marquette and Joliet and La Salle, past the lonely Chickasaw Bluffs, and of the coming of Le Moyne Bienville with a large army and the construction of a great fortress here, heavily mounted with artillery, in the endeavor to overcome the heroic Chickasaws who resented the French invasions in the effort to conquer their country and to found a great French Empire in Western America, And the story also is told of the effort of Governor Don Manuel Gayoso to establish in like manner a Spanish Empire west of the Mississippi River before the Americans could take hold. Indeed few American cities possess so romantic a story and the archives, not only of the United States, but of France and Spain also are yet rich in historical material awaiting the historian with time and opportunity for investigation.
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This book created somewhat of a sensation in the literary and scientific world. Mr. Donnelly argues that Plato's story was true; that all the ancient civilizations of Europe and America radiated from this ancient kingdom, and that this is the reason we find pyramids, obelisks, and buildings almost Identically alike in Egypt, Mexico and Peru. Donnelly's statements and ample evidence deliver ample evidence for the existence of the continent of Atlants. This book is a must have for all folklorists and people, who are interested in the possible history of a famous nation.
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"Roughing It" is another one of Mark Twain's chronicles of his wandering years, this one being the prequel to "Innocents Abroad." His adventures take place in the Wild West, Salt Lake City and even in Hawaii - among other places. He even enlists as a Confederate cavalryman for some time. The book is also a prolific example for Twain's excellent sense of humour.
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The Ministry of Healing, perhaps one of the best books ever written by Mrs. White, offers a wealth of information on the laws of life, how to cure diseases, how to stay healthy and how to heal the soul. It is important to understand the spiritual side of health, and this is where Mrs. White is the expert at. From the contents: Chapter 1 - Our Example Chapter 2 - Days of Ministry Chapter 3 - With Nature and With God Chapter 4 - The Touch of Faith Chapter 5 - Healing of the Soul Chapter 6 - Saved to Serve Chapter 7 - The Co-Working of the Divine and the Human Chapter 8 - The Physician, an Educator Chapter 9 - Teaching and Healing Chapter 10 - Helping the Tempted Chapter 11 - Working for the Intemperate Chapter 12 - Help for the Unemployed and the Homeless Chapter 13 - The Helpless Poor Chapter 14 - Ministry to the Rich ...
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CHAPTER LI. OLD COUNTY FAMILIES.





Probably no family name was or is

better known throughout Queens or Nassau county than that of Hicks, mainly, of

course, on account of the celebrity which one at least of their number attained

in religious circles. Most of them were Quakers of the most devoted class,

intolerant of the wiles and vanities of this wicked world, and yet it is

singular that they should one and all take pride in tracing the family descent

from a warring knight, Sir Ellis Hix, who, the genealogical writers tell us,

was one of the most trusted warriors of the Black        Prince and was

knighted for his valorous deeds by that hero in 1356 on the battle-field of

Poictiers. How the descent is proved it is not easy to say, but it seems

satisfactory to the genealogists and to the family, and in such circumstances

no one has any right to dispute the correctness of the tree. Only it is

singular that such vanity should find expression in the circumstance. The first

of the family to settle in America was John Hicks, who settled at Roxbury, Massachusetts,

and had a family of six sons and three daughters. Two of the sons, John and

Stephen, crossed to Long Island in 1642 and settled in Hempstead, of which he

became quite an active citizen, and he also acquired some property in

Flushing-. Stephen bought from the Indians an extensive tract of land at Little

Neck and settled there. One evil-minded biographer asserts that John's son

Thomas in time also acquired a tract of land at Little Neck after, according to

tradition, quite a rude dispossession of the Indians who had held the land in

question. There is, however, it must be confessed, some dubiety about this

matter, and probably it arose from the fact that some unregenerate aborigines

returned and squatted on lands which Thomas had received from his uncle. The

family biographers, as we shall see, speak in the highest terms of Thomas

Hicks, as is right and proper when we recall the fact that he was the ancestor

-of the most distinguished member of the Society of Friends that this country

has produced. Many of the descendants of the pioneer brothers settled over Long

Island and are to be found there, notably in Flushing, Hempstead, Rockaway and

Oyster Bay. 




The following sketch of the

family and of the wonderful and useful career of Elias Hicks was written by one

of the family, Mr. Isaac Hicks: 




John Hicks settled at Hempstead,

and it is from him that the extensive family of the name on Long Island and in

New York are descended. Having been educated at Oxford University, he was a man

of intelligence, and his natural force of character made him a leader in the

youthful colony. He took an active part in public affairs, and his name appears

in most of the important transactions of the time. 




John Hicks left an only son,

Thomas, who seems to have inherited his father's intellectual vigor and force

of character. He occupied a prominent position in public and social life, and

filled many places of trust and honor, among others that of the first judge

appointed for the county of Queens, an office which he held for many years. 




In 1666 he obtained from Governor

Nicoll a patent for 4,000 acres, including Great Neck and lands adjacent. Here

he erected a fine mansion and introduced the English manorial style of living. 




He was a remarkable man in many

respects, retaining his mental and physical powers unimpaired to extreme old

age. A paragraph in the New York Postboy of January 26, 1749, states that ''he

left behind him, of his own offspring, above three hundred children,

grandchildren, great-grandchildren and great-great-grandchildren." He died

in his one hundredth year, and left, among other children, a son Jacob, who was

the grandfather of the subject of this sketch. 




Elias Hicks was born at Rockaway,

Long Island, March 19, 1748. His parents, John and Martha Hicks, were in

moderate circumstances, but owned a good farm and comfortable home, where their

children had excellent moral training, but otherwise received only a very

limited education. 




His father being a Quaker,

although not a very active member of that society, Elias early imbibed the

principles of that sect, but during his youth, while apprenticed to a

carpenter, seemed inclined to prefer the gay society of the young people of the

neighborhood. As he grew older he developed a vigorous and active intellect,

and evinced a steadfast devotion to his convictions of right and duty which was

ever one of the most marked elements in his character. He early took decided

ground against the iniquity of human slavery, and later in life was among the

pioneers in the cause of emancipation in the Society of Friends. This was one

of the battles that he felt called upon to fight in the cause of truth and

justice, and he devoted the energy and ability of a long life to the faithful

championship of the oppressed negro. His father was an owner of slaves, and in

his youth Elias plead long and earnestly until he effected their emancipation.

Later in life, when the estate of his father-in-law, who was also a

slaveholder, came to be divided, he resolutely refused to accept for his own share

any portion of the money which represented the value of the slaves, but used it

to purchase their freedom, and ever after took upon himself the care and

support of those thus liberated; even leaving a bequest in his will for their

maintenance in old age. 




In 1666 he became a public

preacher in the Quaker Society, and from that time until his death, when over

eighty years of age, he was a faithful and tireless worker in. what he believed

to be the cause of truth and righteousness. He was especially earnest in the

conviction that service in the ministry should be free, and without the selfish

stimulus of earthly reward, and to this end he was scrupulously careful when

traveling in the service of the society, and on all other occasions, to defray

his own expenses. 




During the exciting years of the

Revolutionary war he carefully maintained the peaceful principles of his sect,

and such was the confidence reposed in his high character that he was

permitted, in the exercise of his religious duties, to pass six times through

the lines of the contending armies. He was scrupulously just in his business

affairs, holding in all cases the dictates of conscience to be superior to the

fallible laws of man. 




In his dress, the furniture of

his house, and all outward things, he carried to the extreme the principle of

plainness and simplicity advocated by his society. In person he was erect, of

commanding stature, and possessed in a remarkable degree that intangible

attribute which we denominate "presence." In social life he was

dignified but kind, a little reserved in manner, and giving the impression of

great intellectual force, combined with a stern devotion to the convictions of

duty. Affable in bearing, and inheriting the courtly politeness of the

old-school gentleman of the last century, his society was much sought by

intelligent people of all classes, who were attracted by his rare and varied

gifts as a conversationalist. 




His public addresses were not

adorned with flowers of rhetoric, nor polished by scholastic learning, but were

plain, logical discourses, delivered with a natural earnestness and eloquence

which seemed to inspire his audience with a measure of his own strong faith,

and to carry them onward to conviction in the principles he advocated with such

force and sincerity. 




His religious views were somewhat

in advance of those popular in his day, and were the result of individual

thought and experience, uninfluenced by theological reading or metaphysical

study. While accepting, in its broadest sense, the Quaker doctrine that the

Almighty Spirit directly influences the hearts of all mankind, and that a

strict adherence to the manifestations of duty, as revealed to each individual

soul, is the foundation of all true religion, he was disposed to assign a less

exalted place to the Bible, as God's specially revealed guide to man, and to

maintain the Unitarian view of Christ's divinity. He took strong and decided

ground against the old-time belief in Satan's personal existence and active

work in the world, holding that the weaknesses and unbridled passions of human

nature were the actual and only evil spirit against which mankind had to

contend. In his view God was all love, and he rejected every doctrine or theory

that impugned the absolute wisdom and goodness of the Divine Being, or His

universal affection for all the human family, however indorsed by conclave or

synod. As it was his nature to think out his conclusions for himself, and then

to take bold and fearless ground in maintaining his convictions of right, his

advanced views naturally met with the disapproval of many of the conservative

members of his society, and after a few years of excited discussion the Quakers

in America divided into two separate bodies, which have ever since remained

distinct. Those who united with the sentiments of Elias were called Hicksite,

and those opposed to him Orthodox, Quakers. The former are the most numerous

about New York, Philadelphia and Baltimore, while the latter compose the bulk

of the society in the New England and Western States. 




Like most celebrated men of

strong will and earnest convictionn of duty, Elias Hicks made a decided

impression upon the religious thought of his time, although the circumscribed

limits within, which the customs and principles of the Quaker Society of that

day confined his labors prevented his working in connection with other

associations; thus restricting his efforts to the endeavor to promote a higher

standard of Christian life among his own religious associates. 




During his long and active career

he was constantly traveling about the country, addressing the meetings of his

society, and wherever he went large and deeply interested audiences gathered to

greet him. His noble presence and eloquent words made lasting impressions upon

his hearers, the memory of which was ever afterward cherished in affectionate

hearts and has been handed clown with a feeling of reverence to a later

generation. 




Elias Hicks died at Jericho, Long

Island, on the 27th of February, 1830. 




Many old families were

represented among the residents of Flushing before it was opened up by modern

improvements so as to develop into a metropolitan suburb. The Thornes could

trace their descent to William Thorne, who settled on a neck of land which was called

Thorne's Point until the name was supplanted by its modern designation of

Willett's Point. The family were all intensely patriotic during the Revolution,

and one died while a prisoner on a hulk in Wallabout Bay. The Cornell family

claimed connection with Flushing from 1643, when Richard Cornell, a sturdy

Quaker, settled within its bounds, and after a life of exceeding usefulness

left a large family, by whom the name was retained in the front rank. The

Lowerres were originally Huguenot refugees, and came to America in 1660 or

thereabout, gradually developing into Quakers as time went on. These words

might also be applied to the Embree family and to that of the Van Zandts. 




Jamaica also furnishes the local

historian with records of many old families, chief among whom is that of King.

This family came to Long Island, where Richard King had long been a successful

merchant. There his son, Rufus King, the most famous of the family, was born in

1755. He was educated at Harvard, where he was graduated in 1777, and then

studied law in an office at Newburyport. His studies were somewhat disturbed by

his becoming an aide to General Sullivan in that hero's Rhode Island

expedition, but after its disastrous termination he was honorably discharged

and returned to his desk. After he was admitted to the bar he rapidly won quite

a prominent place, and as a member of the General Court of Massachusetts, to

which he was elected, he was soon distinguished by the clear manner in which he

handled all of the many pressing public questions then before that body. In

1784 he was elected to Congress, and was returned again in 1785 and 1786. In

1785 he offered his famous resolution that "there should be neither

slavery nor unvoluntary service in any of the States described in the resolution

of Congress in April, 1784, otherwise than in the punishment of crime, whereof

the party shall have been personally guilty; and that this resolution shall be

made an article of compact and remain a fundamental principle of the

constitution between the original States and each of the States named in the

said resolve." This was not pressed to a vote at the time, but the

principle laid down was adopted in the ordinance of 1787 for the government of

the Northwestern territory. In the movement to strengthen the Federal

authority, which began to agitate the country almost as soon as peace was

declared, Rufus King took a prominent part, his views being in favor of a

strong central executive authority. He was recognized as one of the leaders,

with Alexander Hamilton, of the Federalist party, and by voice and pen strove

mightily that its principles might prevail. In 1788 he was chosen Senator along

with General Schuyler from New York, and was reelected in 1795. But higher

honors awaited him. He was offered the Secretaryship of State, and declined,

but accepted the post of Minister to Great Britain. He left New York in 1796,

and for eight years continued to represent his country at the court of St.

James, although during the latter part of the time he was not in political

sympathy with the then President (Jefferson). In 1804 he asked to be relieved,

and when his successor was appointed returned to America and retired to a

beautiful farm he had purchased at Jamaica. Thus began the long and honorable

connection of his name with the good old village. There be mainly resided,

keeping a watchful eye on public affairs, until 1813, when he was again elected

to the United States Senate, and continued to serve until 1823. when he

retired, as he hoped, to enjoy the leisure he had so richly earned. In

reviewing his career in the Senate chamber we are unable to recall any policy

advocated by him which was not wise, just and eminently patriotic, and his

stanch opposition to slavery, to the indiscriminate sale of the public lands,

sales often made upon credit and without guarantee, and in particular his

opposition to the scheme of a political bank with a capital of $50,000,000

pledged by the government, showed that, strong Federal as he was, he was

unwilling to lend aid to a scheme which in a few years would either have become

bankrupt itself or would have paralyzed and bankrupted the trade of the

country. In 1825, at the earnest solicitation of President Adams, Rufus King

again entered public life by accepting once more the post of Ambassador to

Great Britain, but after a few months' residence in London his health failed

and he was compelled to resign. He died in New York City April 29, 1827. 




The mantle of Rufus King fell

upon his eldest son, John Alsop King, who developed much of his father's public

spirit and high statesmanship. Educated for the bar, he had a taste of military

experience during the war of 1812, when he served as a lieutenant in a cavalry

regiment. He took up his residence near his father's home in Jamaica, and engaged

in farming, but in 1819 was elected a member of the New York Assembly, where he

soon became noted for his opposition to the policy and plans of De Witt

Clinton, with the exception of that statesman's canal projects, which he

heartily endorsed. He went to London with his father in 1825 as secretary of

legation, and remained in charge of the affairs of the embassy from the date of

his father's resignation until the arrival of the next appointee. In 1838 he

was again returned to the Assembly, took part in 1855 in the convention at

Syracuse at which the Republican party was born, and in 1856 was elected

Governor of the State of New York. He declined a re-election, and when his term

was over retired to his home in Jamaica, where he continued to reside until his

death, in 1867. His widow survived until 1873, and then passed away, venerated

by all who knew her for her kindly ways and Christian, beautiful life. Of her

many benefactions to Grace Church, Jamaica, as well as the many gifts to that

temple of other members of the King family, mention has already been made. The

family is still prominently represented in public and commercial life, although

their connection with Jamaica has almost become a memory. 




A group of Jamaica families claim

descent from Joris (or George) Jansen de Rapalje, who with his brother William

came to America from Holland in 1623 in the same vessel with Peter Minuit, and

from another brother, Antonie Jansen, who followed them in 1623. It is not

certain that William ever married, but Joris founded the Wallabout family of

Rapalyes, of whom we have spoken considerably, while Antonie, who married a

Quakere'ss, had four sons, and they appear to have departed from the old Dutch

custom in the way of transmitting surnames and stuck to the Jansen, which in

due process of time became transformed into plain Johnson and as such became

prominent in Kings as well as in Queens county. A family genealogist thus

describes the fortunes of the Jamaica Johnsons and their collateral branches: 




Hendrick Jansen, the youngest son

of Antonie, settled at Gravesend and married a Stilwell, by whom he had four

sons: 1, Jan (John), who settled at Jamaica, Long Island; 2, Claes, who settled

at Six Mile Run, New Jersey; 3, Barent, who settled at Gravesend; 4, William, who

'settled at Gravesend. Barent, the third son of Hendrick, was the father of the

Rev. John B. Johnson, a noted preacher of the Reformed Dutch Church, who was

settled first at Albany, New York, and afterward at Brooklyn, where he died in

1803. Rev. John B. Johnson had three children: 1, Maria L., who married the

Rev. Evan M. Johnson, rector of St. James's Church, Newtown, Long Island, from

1814 to 1827, when he removed to St. John's Church, Brooklyn; 2, Rev. William

L. Johnson, D. D., who from 1830 to the time of his death (1870) was rector of

Grace Church, Jamaica, Long Island; 3, Rev. Samuel R. Johnson, D. D., who was

rector at different times of several Episcopal churches, and professor in the

Episcopal Theological Seminary, New York City. Hendrick's children changed the

Holland name Jansen to the English name Johnson, yet the Holland name was

retained for many years in the family records. 




John Johnson, the oldest son of

Hendrick, was born at Gravesend, Long Island, December 5, 1705. He married

(September 23, 1732) Catalina Schenck, who was born May 7, 1705. They had seven

children: 1, Maria, born August 11, 1733, married Douw Ditmars, of Jamaica; 2,

Catalina, born August 15, 1735, remained unmarried; 3, Elizabeth, born November

21, 1737, married Abraham Ditmars, of Jamaica; 4, Barent, born April 2, 1740,

married Anne Remsen; 5, Martin, born October 25, 1742, married Phebe Rapalje;

6, Catharine, born February 18, 1746, died in infancy; 7, Johannes, born July

25, 1748, died in infancy. John Johnson held office in the Reformed Dutch

Church at Jamaica. He died March 27, 1776. His wife died October 5, 1779




Martin Johnson, of Jamaica, born

October 25, 1742, married (May 10, 1772) Phebe, daughter of George Rapelje, of

New Lots. She was born February 25, 1754. Their children were: 1, Catalina,

born May 14, 1773, married (November 5, 1791) John D. Ditmis, of Jamaica, and

had children Martin, Dow I., John, Abraham, Phebe, Maria, Catalina and George;

2, Maria, born August 20, 1775, died in infancy; 3, Johannes (John), born

February 27, 1777, died in infancy; 4, Maria, born May 10, 1778, married

(November 30, 1798) Rem Suydam, of Newtown, and had children Phebe, Catalina,

John, Maria, Nelly, Martin, Gitty, and George and Henry (twins); 5, Johannes

(John), born September 26, 1780, died in infancy: 6, Martin, born March 14,

1782, died in infancy; 7, Phebe, born July 19, 1783, married (December 11.

1800) John I. Duryea, and had children Jane Ann, Maria, Alletta, Martin I.,

Sarah, Catalina and John I.; 8, Martin, born September 13, 1785, died in

infancy; 9, Elizabeth, born January 25. 1788, married Willett Skidmore, and had

children Phebe and Samuel; 10, Jannetie (Jane), born May 15, 1790, died in

infancy; 11, Joris (George), born August 30, 1791, married (June 28, 1815) Catharine

Smodiker, and had children Martin G.. Catharine and Phebe; 12, Johannes (John),

born May 17, 1794, married (August 22, 1815) Maria Lott, and had children

Martin I., Stephen, Phebe, Eldert, George, Maria Ann, Catalina, Henry,

Jeremiah, Sarah, Ditmars and Catharine; 13, Jannetie (Jane), born February 22,

1707, died in infancy. 




Martin Johnson, the grandfather

of Martin G., died April 27, 1798. Phebe, his wife, died October 27, 1828. 




Martin Johnson was earnest in the

cause of independence, and was compelled to give up the best part of his house

to the British officers, who occupied it while their army was encamped at

Jamaica. He and his family were greatly discommoded, but it was better to

submit quietly than to object and perhaps suffer more. Martin Johnson was an

active member and an elder of the Reformed Dutch Church, and one of the

committee to repair the church edifice after the Revolutionary war, during

which it was dismantled by the British soldiers. He was one of the contributors

to the fund for founding Union Hall Academy. The first building was erected on

the south side of Fulton street, where Herriman's brick row now stands, and was

opened May 1, 1792. Here his sons George and John were educated, when Lewis E.

A. Eigenbrodt, LL. D., was principal, which position he held from 1796 to 1828.






George Johnson, born August 30.

1791. married (June 28, 1815) Catharine Snediker who was born December 5, 1788.

They had three children: 1, Martin G. Johnson, born April 26, 1816, married

(May 31, 1859) Margaret T. Nostrand, who was born February 19, 1815 — no

children; 2, Catharine Johnson, born July 8, 1819, married (May 13, 1856) Elias

J. Hendrickson, who was born August ID, 1812— no children; 3, Phebe Johnson,

born January 4. 1824, married (June 19, 1854) George O. Ditmis (who was born

July 22, 1818), and died December 27, 1866. James Hendrickson, the father of

Elias J., was an elder and one of the pillars of the Reformed Dutch Church of

Jamaica. 




George O. and Phebe Ditmis had

six children: I, Catharine, born November 26, 1856; 2, Georgianna J., born May

5, 1859; 3. John D., born December 18, 1860; 4 and 5, Martin G. J. (born

January 30, 1862, died February 18, 1878) and Margaret N., born January 30,

1862, died in infancy; 6, Caroline Maria, born November 9, 1863, died in

infancy. 




George. Johnson, the father of

Martin G., held at different times the town offices of supervisor, commissioner

of common schools, inspector of common schools, inspector of election,

commissioner of highways and assessor. He was an elder in the Reformed Dutch

Church of Jamaica, and one of its most liberal supporters. He died May 14,

1865. His wife died December 15, 1858. 




A short genealogy of, the Johnson

family is as follows: Gaspard Colet de Rapalje, from France, married the

daughter of Victor Antoniie Jansen, in Holland, by whom he had two sons and a

daughter Breckje, who married her cousin, Victor Honorius Jansen, who was the

father of Abram, who was the father of Antonie, who was the father of Hendrick,

who was the father of John, who was the father of Martin, who was the father of

George, who was the father of Martin G. 




 




THE SNEDIKER FAMILY AS CONNECTED

WITH THE JOHNSON FAMILY. 




 




Jan Snediker, the common ancestor

of the Snediker family, came from Holland to this country as early as 1642, and

was among the first settlers of Flatbush, and his name appears in the patent of

New Lots, 1667; by his will (1670) he devised his land to his son Gerret. (New

Lots was then part of the town of Flatbush.) 




Gerret Snediker, of New Lets (son

of Jan), married; first, Willemtje Vocks; second, Elstje Denyse: he died in

1694. Children: Jan of Jamaica, Margaret. Christian of Jamaica, Abraham, Isaac

of New Lots, Sara, born 1683 (married Adrian Onderdonk); Gerret and Elstje. 




Abraham Snediker, of New Lots (son

of Gerret), born 1677, married and had children Abraham, Johannes, Gerret,

Theodoras, Elizabeth, Altie and Sara. 




Isaac Snediker, of New Lots (son

of Gerret), born 1680, married Catryntje Janse; died in 1758. Children: Garret,

Abraham, Antie, Sara, Isaac, Catryntje (born 1721, married Douwe Ditmars),

Jacob of New Lots, Femmetie (Phebe), and Elstje, born 1731. 




John Snediker, of New Lots,

married Neiltje, daughter of Johannes Lott, of Flatbush; she was born November

13, 1730. They had a son, Isaac I. (grandfather of Martin G. Johnson). 




Isaac I. Snediker, of New Lots

(son of John), born July 17, 1759, married Catharine, daughter of Jacob

Rapelje, of Newtown. She was born January 18, 1760. They had four children: 1,

Jacob, born May 18, 1787, died in infancy; 2, Catharine, born December 5, 1788

(the wife of George Johnson and mother of Martin G.), died December 15, 1858:

3, Nelly, born November 5, 1790, married (October 5, 1815) John E. Lott, of New

Utrecht, Long Island (who was born December 16, 1789), had one daughter,

Catharine, and died May I, 1866; 4, Jacob, born November 2, 1792, married

(March, 1822) Anne Lott, daughter of Hendrick Lott, of Jamaica; no children. 




Jacob Snediker belonged to the

Reformed Dutch Church of New Lots, and was one of its firmest friends and

supporters. He died September 20, 1859. His wife died August 22, 1867. 




Isaac I. Snediker (father of

Jacob) died February 1, 1804. His wife died September 9, 1796. 




The Snediker homestead, on which

Jacob Snediker and his forefathers were born and lived and died, is situated on

both sides of the New Lots road, at the crossing of the New York &

Manhattan Beach Railroad and the Brooklyn & Rockaway Beach Railroad. The

house, probably two hundred years old, still stands in a good state of

preservation. This farm originally extended to what is now the center of East

New York; but Jacob Snediker sold forty-five acres of the northerly part to

Whitehead Howard, and sixty-nine acres of the middle and easterly part to

Abraham Vanderveer. The homestead still belongs to the heirs of Jacob Snediker.

It has been in the family 215 years. 




 




THE NOSTRAND FAMILY AS CONNECTED

WITH THE JOHNSON FAMILY. 




 




The Nostrand family derives its

origin from Hans Jansen, who came to Long Island in 1640 from the Noortstrandt,

in the duchy of Holstein. He married Janneken Gerrits Van Leuwen, and bad four

'sons — Jan, Gerrit, Peter and Folkert. His sons adopted the name of the place

from which their father emigrated, which in the course of time has been changed

to the present to the present name, Nostrand. Different branches of the family

have in former times lived and their descendants still live in New York,

Brooklyn, Flatbush, New Utrecht, Flatlands and New Lots, Kings county; in

Jamaica, Flushing and Hempstead, Queens county; and in Huntington, Suffolk

county. 




Margaret T. Nostrand, the wife of

Martin G. Johnson, is the daughter of Timothy Nostrand, who for many years was

a merchant in New York. When he. retired from business he bought the farm on

which his son George now lives, situated on the Brooklyn & Jamaica Plank

Road, one mile west of the village of Jamaica, where he died December 21, 1831.

Her grandfather, John Nostrand, owned and lived and died on the homestead farm

at Valley Stream, in the town of Hempstead: it descended to his son, John

Nostrand, Jr., and there he lived and died; after his death it belonged to his

son Foster, who also lived and died there. On this farm Timothy Nostrand was

born, February 8, 1767. 




Timothy Nostrand married first

(September 27, 1793) Garchy, daughter of John Suydam, of Newtown. Their

children were: Sarah, born October 1, 1794, married James Bogart, died October

14, 1845; and John S., born March 16, 1796, who died, unmarried, February 6,

1836. Timothy Nostrand married, second (September 8, 1804), Catharine, daughter

of Stephen Lott, of Jamaica. Their children were: 




1. Stephen L., horn August 31,

1805, married (January 30, 1826) Cornelia L. Remsen, of Flatland. They had one

child, Catharine Ann, who married Jacob Ryerson, of Flatlands. 




2. Garchy (Gitty) Ann, born March

16, 1807, died, unmarried, January 8, 1831. 




3. George, born February 5, 1809,

married first (March 26, 1846) Mary Bogardus. They had one child, Henry L.

Nostrand, who married Phebe W., only child of Dominicus Vanderveer, of Jamaica.

George married secondly (October 12, 1859) Cornelia C. Van Siclen, of Jamaica.

No children. 




4. Catharine L., born December

31. 1810, married (April 7, 1836) Dr. Richard T. Horsfield, of New York. Their

children are: Richard T., Timothy N. (who married Sophia Frisbie), and

Catharine L. (who married John K. Underhill). Catharine L. Plorsfield died

February 2, 1879. 




5. Margaret T., born February 19,

1815, married (May 31, 1859) Martin G. Johnson. No children. 




6. Timothy, born April 21, 1817,

married first (October 19, 1853) Catharine Lott, of New Utrecht (cousin of

Martin G. Johnson). Their children were: Ellie (deceased), J. Lott, T. Foster,

Margaret (deceased) and George E. Timothy married, secondly Belinda Hegeman, of

New Utrecht, who survives him. He died December 6, 1878. 




All the children of Timothy

Nostrand. Sr., are dead except George Nostrand and Margaret T., wife of Martin

G. Johnson. 




Timothy Nostrand, Sr., was one of

the most prominent members of Grace Church, Jamaica, and was for many years

warden, and for several years and at the time of his death, senior warden. The

following notice of his death appears on the records of the church, January 2,

1832: 




"The vestry have heard with

deep regret of the decease of Mr. Timothy Nostrand, their clerk, the senior

warden, of this church, and treasurer, and sincerely condole with the

congregation with whom he was connected, and with his family, in the great

bereavement they have been called to sustain; and we implore the Divine

compassion on them that this afflictive providence may be sanctified to them,

and to the church of which he was a member." He was a member of Assembly

of the State of New York, and a trustee of Union Hall Academy. He died December

21, 1831. His wife Catharine died February 13, 1860. 




 




THE DITMARS FAMILY AS CONNECTED

WITH THE JOHNSON FAMILY. 




 




Jan Jansjn Ditmars, the common

ancestor of the family, emigrated from Ditmarsen, in the duchy of Holstein. He

married Neeltie Douws; obtained a patent March 23, 1647, for 24 morgens, at

Dutch Kills, Newtown, Queens county; died prior to 1650. 




Douw Jansen Ditmars resided first

at Flatbush, and finally settled at Jamaica. His first name was variously

spelled Douwe, Douw, Dowe and Dow, and his surname Ditmarse, Ditmis, Ditmas and

Ditmars. He held office in the Reformed Dutch Church, Jamaica, and died about

1755. 




Abraham Ditmars, of Jamaica,

married (June 18, 1725) Breckje, daughter of Abraham Remsen, of Newtown, and

died on his farm at Jamaica, August 7, 1743. He was the father of Douw Ditmars

and Abraham Ditmars, Jr. the two brothers who married two sisters, Maria and

Elizabeth, the daughters of John Johnson, of Jamaica (great-grandfather of

Martin G. Johnson). 




Douw Ditmars, of Jamaica, born

August 24, 1735, married Maria, the oldest daughter of John Johnson, of

Jamaica. They had five children, John D., Abraham, Breckje, and Maria and

Catahna, who were twins. He was an office holder in the Reformed Dutch Church.

He died August 25. 1775. 




John D. Ditmis, of Jamaica (son

of Douw Ditmars), married (November 5, 1791) Catalina, the oldest daughter of

Martin Johnson (grandfather of Martin G. Johnson). They had eight children:

Martin, Dow, John, Abraham, Phebe, Maria, Catalina and George, who are all

deceased except Maria. 




Dow I. Ditmis, son of John D.,

married (April 22, 1817) Catharine Onderdonk, of Cow Neck (Manhasset). Their

children are: George O., John and Jacob Adrian Ditmis, all of Jamaica. Henry

Onderdonk, Jr., A. M., married Maria H., sister of Catharine Onderdonk, wife of

Dow I. Ditmis. 




Abraham Ditmis, son of John D.,

married (April 18, 1827) Katie Onderdonk, of Cow Neck (Manhasset). They had one

child, Henry O. Ditmis. 




John D. Ditmis held the military

office of major; he was a member of Assembly in 1802 and 1804, and a State

Senator from 1816 to 1820, and held the office of Surrogate of Queens county.

He was a trustee of Union Hall Academy; he belonged to the Reformed Dutch

Church. He died March 11. 1853; his wife July 6, 1847. 




Abraham Ditmars, Jr. (son of

Abraham, of Jamaica), born December 9. 1738, married Elizabeth, the third

daughter of John Johnson (great-grandfather of Martin G. Johnson). They had

four children — Abraham. born October 6, 1760; Catalina, born September 20,

1762, married Samuel Eldert, of Jamaica; John A., born April 9, 1766; and Dow,

born June 12, 1771. 




John A. Ditmars married Nancy,

daughter of Johannes Wyckof, of Jamaica. They had three children — Margaret

Ann, A. Johnson and Elizabeth, all deceased. 




Elizabeth Ditmars married

(December 30, 1839) Martin L Johnson, who was for some years, and at the time

of his death, county clerk. He was the eighth son of John and Maria Johnson,

and cousin of Martin G. Johnson. Martin L and Elizabeth are both deceased, but

cue son, A. Ditmars Johnson, of Jamaica, survives them. 




Dow Ditmars, son of Abraham

Ditmars, Jr., studied medicine, and went to Demarara, South America, where he

had a lucrative practice for fourteen years. When he returned he married Anna

Elvira, daughter of Samuel Riker, of Newtown, and bought a farm at Hell Gate

(now Astoria), where he spent the remainder of his life, and died, at an

advanced age, in 1860. Their children were Thomas T., Richard R., Abraham Dow

and. Anna. They are all deceased but Abraham Dow Ditmars, who is a lawyer in

New York. 




Abraham Ditmars, Jr., held office

in the Reformed Dutch Church, Jamaica, and so did his son, John A. Ditmars. 




Abraham Ditmars, Jr. (father of

John A.) was a captain of militia in the Revolution. He was known among the

British soldiers who were quartered at Jamaica as the "rebel

captain," and he suffered much from their depredations. They stole the

crops from his farm, the provisions from his cellar, and all of his fowls but

one, which went to the top of the barn to roost. One day the soldiers ordered

him and his family to leave the house, as they intended to burn it. He had to

obey, and his sick wife was taken on a bed and placed in. the dooryard! But it

seemed that an Almighty Power interposed; the consciences of the fiends stung

them, and the dreadful threat was not executed. 




So great became the demands upon

him for the produce of his farm, and for the use of his men and teams for

carting the supplies of the British army, that he at last refused to comply.

For this the petty officer who made the demand arrested him, took him to the

village of Jamaica, and locked him up in the dungeon in the cellar of the old

county hall, which stood on the spot now covered by Herriman's brick row. He

was confined until the next day, when he was brought before a superior officer

of the British army, to whom he made a frank statement of the sufferings he had

endured, and of the unreasonable claim's continually made upon him. The officer

at once gave him an honorable discharge; and at the same time severely

reprimanded the underling who had arrested him. This decision had a good

effect, as he afterward did not suffer much annoyance. It is proper to say that

the highest British officers always condemned the cruel and barbarous acts

which were committed by the dregs of the army. 




The home of Abraham Ditmars, Jr.,

was the farm of the late William C. Stoothoff, one and a half miles southwest

of the village of Jamaica, and the old house, in which he lived and died, still

remains. The home of his daughter Catalina, who married Samuel Eldert, was the

old house on Eldert's lane now belonging to Henry Drew; and the old house on

the Brooklyn '& Jamaica Plank Road now belonging to Dominicus Vanderveer

was formerly the home of Douw Ditmars, of another branch of the Ditmars family.

It is a singular circumstance that these three old houses, probably the oldest

in the town, should all have belonged to members of the Ditmars family. They

still stand as monuments of the solid style of building of the early Dutch

settlers. 




Abraham Ditmars and Abraham

Ditmars, Jr., were contributors to the fund for building Union Hall Academy,

and were two of the first trustees at the time its charter was signed by

Governor Clinton, March 9, 1792. 




Abraham Ditmars, Jr., died

November 19, 1824. 




John A. Ditmars was colonel of

the State militia in the war of 1812, and he and his cousins George and John

Johnson and their nephew Dow I. Ditmis were encamped at Fort Greene (now

Washington Park), Brooklyn. They were under the command of Genera) Jeremiah

Johnson, of Brooklyn, who was the cousin of George and John Johnson and John A.

Ditmars. There our soldiers were for some time, in daily expectation of the

landing of the British forces, whose vessels of war were lying off the harbor

of New York; but the British wisely concluded to depart without landing. 




 




INTERMARRIAGES OF JOHNSON,

DITMARS AND RAPELJE FAMILIES. 




 




The union of the Johnson and

Ditmars families in this country began by the marriage of two sisters of Martin

Johnson, Maria and Elizabeth, daughters of John Johnson, of Jamaica

(great-grandfather of Martin G.), to two brothers, Douw and Abraham Ditmars, of

Jamaica. 




Catalina, daughter of Martin

Johnson, of Jamaica (grandfather of Martin G.), married John D. Ditmis, the son

of Douw. 




Martin I. Johnson, a

great-grandson of John Johnson above named, married Elizabeth, daughter of John

A. Ditmars. 




Phebe, daughter of George

Johnson, of Jamaica, married George O. Ditmis, a grandson of John D. Ditmis. 




Victor Honorius Jansen, of

Holland, married Breckje Rapalje (written by different families Rapalje,

Rapelje, Rapelye and Rapelyea). Martin Johnson, of Jamaica, married Phebe

Rapelje. General Jeremiah Johnson, of Brooklyn, married Sarah Rapelje. 




Breckje, sister of John D. and

daughter of Douw Ditmars, of Jamaica, married (December 29, 1791) Peter

Rapelje, of New Lots. Their children were Jacob, Dow and Peter. 




Maria and Catalina were twin

daughters of Douw Ditmars, of Jamaica, and sisters of John D. and Breckje

Ditmars. Maria married Jacob Rapelje, of Newtown. They had one child, Susan.

Catalina married John R. Ludlow, of Newtown. She was his second wife. They had

one son, Ditmars. 




Susan, the only child of Jacob

and Maria Rapelje, married the Rev. Gabriel Ludlow, D. D., who for many years,

and at the time of his death, was pastor of the Reformed Dutch Church at

Neshanic, New Jersey. He was the son of John R. Ludlow by his first wife.

Another son was John Ludlow, D. D., who was twice professor in the Theological

Seminary, New Brunswick, New Jersey, for many years pastor of the Reformed

Dutch Church at Albany, and afterward provost of the University of

Pennsylvania. 




 




OTHER FAMILIES. 




 




The Hallet family formerly had

many representatives in Jamaica, although Newtown seems to have long been more

prominently associated with the name than any other locality. The pioneer of

the family, William Hallet, settled in 1655 at what became known as Hallet's

Cove, and, as we have seen, had quite a melancholy experience with the Indians.

He survived his troubles, married a Quakeress and settled at Hell Gate until

his death, when he had attained the age of ninety years. His descendants were

long known as thrifty farmers, and seem to have spread all over the western end

of Long Island. They were devoted adherents, most of them, of the Society of

Friends, and in the persecution of these people by the authorities they seem to

have been visited with a full share. In connection with the history of this

family a story is told in Riker's "Annals of Newtown," which long

created a deep sensation throughout the district and still, for its heartless

atrocity, holds a prominent position in the criminal annals of Long Island. The

details as given by Riker were as follows: 




"Very near the present

settlement of Middletown there lived a thrifty farmer, William Hallett, Jr.,

who held a portion of the land which his paternal grandfather had purchased of

the natives. Near neighbors there were few or none, but his domestic hearth was

enlivened by the presence of five children and a fond wife who was expected

soon to add another to their store of conjugal comforts. In the family were two

colored slaves, a man and wife, the former an Indian. Incensed, as was said at

the time, because they were restrained from going abroad on the Sabbath, the

woman meditated revenge and assured her husband that if he would only kill the

whole family then, the farm and everything pertaining to it would become his

own. He at last yielded to the wicked suggestion and accomplished the atrocious

deed while his victims were asleep. It was on Saturday night, the 24th of

January, 1708. Hoping to screen themselves from suspicion, they concluded to be

the first to announce the tragedy, and with this intent the female fiend, the

prime instigator of the deed, set out early the next morning for Hallett's

Cove. Entering a house, her first exclamation was: "Oh, dear! they have

killed master and missis and the children with an axe, and only Sam and I have

escaped." The truth, however, was too palpable, and the guilty creature

soon confessed who was the real murderer. Both were straightway arrested and

lodged in Jamaica jail. Tidings of the affair were at once sent to Governor

Cornbury, who immediately issued a special warrant to the judges, before whom,

at Jamaica, the prisoners were arraigned for trial, and being found guilty,

they were executed on the plains east of that village, on Monday, February 2nd,

in the presence of a large concourse of spectators. The woman was burnt at the

stake. Her accomplice was hung in gibbets and placed astride a sharp iron, in

which condition he lived some time; and in a state of delirium which ensued,

believing himself to be on horseback, would urge forward his supposed animal

with the frightful impetuosity of a maniac, while the blood oozing from his

lacerated flesh streamed from his feet to the ground. How rude the age that

could inflict such tortures, however great the crime committed I * * * Mr.

Hallett was a son of Captain William Hallett, then one of His Majesty's

justices of the peace. He was in the prime of life, and had served the town in

various public capacities. "The event which so prematurely terminated his

life and those of his family produced a strong sensation in the province, and a

law was passed shortly after, making mention of the occurrence and entitled 'An

act for preventing the conspiracy of slaves.' The dwelling where the murder was

committed is still (1852) remembered by many, it having remained until the

beginning of the present century. It was built of brick and stood in the hollow

on the west side of the road, opposite the late residence of Mr. Marks and

within a few feet of the small housie now erected there. The well which

belonged to these premises remains still in use. With this spot the juveniles

were wont to associate the idea of ghosts and hobgoblins; it was noted as the

scene of marvelous appearances witnessed by the timid traveler at the dim,

mysterious hour of twilight, and was often pointed at by the passing school boy

as "the haunted house." By some it is stated that the assassination

of the Hallett family was only part of a plot among the slaves of the vicinity

to possess themselves of the property of their masters. There must have been

some evidence in support of this theory, for it is related that on Tuesday,

February loth, a week and a day after the execution of the murderers, two negro

men were put to death for complicity in the crime and several others had been

arrested and were awaiting trial. Yet, had the murderous movement been a

general one, it would doubtless be recorded that still others were punished. In

the absence of such a statement it is fair to presume it was not." 




The Burroughs family in Newtown

can trace its American genealogy back to 1637, when John Burroughs landed in

Salem, Massachusetts. In 1643 he seems to have settled in Newtown, where he

occupied a farm that remained intact in the possession of his descendants until

about 1835. Another noted Newtown family was that of the Rikers, whose American

ancestor, Abraham Rycken or de Rycke, received a grant of land at the Wallabout

from Governor Kieft in 1638. He got possession of what is now known, as Riker's

Island about 1650. His sons Abraham and Andrew proved shrewd business men. and

their extensive land purchases made them rich. Abraham was a public-spirited

citizen of Newtown, and took a prominent part in the erection of the old Dutch

Church there. 




The Lent family is of common origin

with the Riker family, being descended from Ryck and Hendrick, the eldest and

youngest sons of Abraham Rycken, who, for reasons not clearly known, renounced

their own name and assumed the name of Lent. Abraham Lent, son of Ryck, came

from Westchester, county to Newtown in 1729 and took possession of a farm left

him by his uncle, Jacobus Krankheyt, on Bowery Bay. He resided here until his

death, in 1746, when his son Jacobus, for years a ruling elder in the Dutch

Church, succeeded to the farm. His death occurred in 1779. Daniel Lent,

youngest son of Jacobus, was the last of the family who occupied this estate.

It was sold just prior to his death, which occurred April 20, 1797. Daniel, his

only child that survived infancy, removed to Flushing Bay, and for years

resided upon the farm. 




The Alsop family goes back, or

could go back if any of its representatives still exist, which is doubtful, to

the roll of the first settlers of Newtown. Thomas Wandell, a major in

Cromwell's army, seemed to get involved in some dispute with the Lord

Protector, — a dispute, whatever its nature, so serious that Wandell had to fly

for his life. He made his way across the Atlantic, and in 1648 we find him in

Maspeth. In 1659 he bought a farm at Newtown and took up his residence there,

marrying the widow of its former owner. He was quite an influential member of

the local society, and was held in high esteem even on Manhattan Island. Having

no children, he invited a nephew in England to join his fortunes with his in

this country, and when he died, in 1691, he left his estate to that nephew,

Richard Alsop. That young man had "taken" to the new country almost

as soon as he arrived. He fell in love with a Dutch lady, but as she could

speak no English and he did not know a word of Dutch, the billing and cooing

customary to courtship had to be carried on with the aid of an interpreter.

However, love, which laughs at locksmiths, triumphed over such an obstacle, and

the pair were married. They lived very happily together on the Wandell property

until his death, in 1718. His widow survived until 1757, when she passed away

in her ninety-first year. Their son Richard succeeded to the property, and it

remained in possession of the Alsop family until 1837, when the last of the

name died and the property was sold to strangers — all except the old family

burial plot, which is now enclosed in Calvary cemetery, a little Protestant

plot in the midst of that great city of Roman Catholic dead. 




The two following sketches of

other Newtown worthies are from the pen of the late William O'Gorman, of Laurel

Hill, and were written for the Long Island Star: 




"Captain Richard Betts,

whose public services appear for fifty years on every page of Newtown's

history, came in 1648 to New England, but soon after to Newtown, where he

acquired great influence. In the revolution of 1663 he bore a zealous part, and

after the conquest of New Netherlands by the English was a member from Newtown

of the Provincial Assembly held at Hempstead in 1665. In 1678 he was

commissioned high sheriff of 'Yorkshire upon Long Island,' and he retained the

position until 1681. He became a bitter opponent to Director Pieter Stuyvesant

and the little town of Bushwick, which he had' founded. Lender leave from the

Governor, the English settlers had planted their town, but were refused the

usual patent, and in 1656 Richard Betts administered a severe blow to

Stuyvesant by purchasing the land for himself and fifty-five associates, from

the red men, at the rate of one shilling per acre. The total cost amounted to

£68 16s. 4d., which, with the sum of £76 9s. paid to the sachems Pomwaukon and

Rowerowestco, extinguished the Indian title to Newtown. For a long series of

years Betts was a magistrate. During this time he was more than once a member

of the high court of assize, then the supreme power in the province. He became

an extensive landholder at the English Kills. His residence was here, in what

is still known as 'the old Betts house.' It is further said that here within

sight of his bedroom he dug his own grave, in his one hundredth year, and from

the former to the latter he was carried in 1713. No headstone marks the grave,

but its absence may be accounted for by the fact that his sons had become

Quakers and abjured headstones. The old house, which we may enter by lifting

the wrought-iron latch of heavy construction, worn by the hands of many

generations; the polished flags around the old deep well, where the soldiers

were wont to wash down their rations, are still as the British left them on

their last march through Maspeth. This house is but one of several most ancient

farm houses still carefully preserved for their antiquity, on the old Newtown

road, between Calvary cemetery and Maurice avenue. These venerable companions

have witnessed many changes, and now enjoy a green old age, respected by the

community in 'which they stand. 




"John Moore, the early

ancestor of the Newtown family of this name, was supposed to be of English

birth, though it is unknown when or whence he emigrated. He was an Independent,

and the first minister of the town. Though not authorized to administer

sacraments, he preached to the people of Newtown until his death, in 1657. In

consequence of his interest in the purchase of Newtown from the Indians the

town awarded eighty acres of land to his children, thirty years after his

decease. One of his sons, Samuel Moore, became a grantee of land in Newtown

village in 1662, and afterward bought an adjacent tract, previously owned by

his father, which subsequently came into the hands of John J. Moore. In 1684 he

bought a farm near the Poor Bowery, to which he removed. 




"Among the distinguished

members of the Moore family was Benjamin Moore, who was born at Newtown October

5, 1748. He received his education at Kings (now Columbia) College, and afterward

became its honored president. After pursuing theological studies he went to

England and was ordained to the Episcopal ministry. In 1800 he was appointed

rector of Trinity Church, and in 1801 was elected bishop of the Protestant

Episcopal Church in the State of New York, and he continued in this relation

until his death, February 16, 1816. His wife was a daughter of Major Clement

Clark, of New York. 




"His brother, William Moore,

born at Newtown January 17, 1754, was a medical student and a graduate of

Edinburgh in 1780. He then returned home, and for more than forty years was

engaged in the duties of an extensive practice. For many years he was president

of the New York Medical Society, and trustee of the College of Physicians and

Surgeons. His wife was a daughter of Nathaniel Fish, of Newtown. One of their

sons, Nathaniel F., succeeded his uncle as president of Columbia College. 




"Captain Daniel Sackett

Moore was a successful and respected ship-master. He owned the Moore residence

near Newtown village, and died here in 1828. His son, John Jacob Moore, the

last of the sixth generation of the Moore family, died June 14, 1879, aged

eventy-three years. The ancestors of this gentleman form an unbroken line of

proprietors in fee from the original Indian purchase, in 1656, in the following

order: Rev. John Moore, died 1657; Samuel Moore, died 1717; Benjamin Moore,

died 1750; John Moore, born 1730, died 1827; Captain Daniel Sackett Moore, died

1828; John Jacob Moore, died 1879. 




"The venerable Moore house

standing on the Shell road was one of the mansions of the colonial period. It

is carefully preserved and has been occupied constantly by the Moore family

since its erection, more than a hundred years before the Revolution; no part of

it is allowed to go to decay, nor is there much change save by additions, which

are not allowed to displace the old structure. The same hall door — in two

sections, of solid oak and secured by the original strong hinges, bolts and

locks, and with the original ponderous brass knocker — is still spared; the old

well-built stairway give access to the upper rooms; the ancient beams still

exhibit their full proportions and are well varnished. This house occupied the

center of the British camp for many years. The well beside it requires but one

glance down its mossy stones to discover its antiquity." 




The Kissam family of North

Hempstead can point in its records to the names of many who have been

prominent, locally at all events, in public and professional life for over two

centuries and a half — a long time as genealogies go in the United States. The

name of the American founder of the family has been lost "through the

vicissitude of time," as Burkes' "Peerage" gravely puts it, and

so gets over such a snag in its story of the origin of many noble families in

Great Britain. Had the town records of Flushing not been destroyed by fire in

1789 it is possible that the name of the American pioneer would have been

extant and so the genealogical tree of the family might have had a more

symmetrical beginning. This now nameless pioneer seems to have arrived in

America about 1640 and settled on a piece of land in Flushing. He did not long

survive the change of country, for when he died he left his property in the

care of guardians for the benefit of his only son, John. John was born in 1644

and in due time entered upon possession of his father's acres and like a good

Dutchman settled down and cultivated them, bringing to the homestead as its

mistress a Jamaica girl, Susan Thorne, whom he married in 1667. Their family

consisted of three sons. The second son, John, in after years married and

settled in Freehold, New Jersey, and it is thought that the youngest, Thomas,

also removed to that colony. Daniel, the eldest, appears to have left Flushing

and secured a farm on Great Neck. In 1703 he was elected a vestryman in St.

George's Church, Hempstead. He had a large family, one of whom, Joseph, also

became a vestryman in St. George's, and had a farm at Cow Bay. Daniel, a nephew

of the last named, son of an elder brother, who also held a farm at Cow Bay,

had quite an experience in public life, as he served as county treasurer from

1759 to 1782 and was for many years a member of Assembly and a justice of the

peace. Some of his family, at least, were opposed to the Patriots during the

Revolution, for we find one of his sons, John, accepting a commission as major

from Governor Tryon in 1776. Another member of the family active in public life

was Daniel Whitehead Kissam, who served in 1786 as a member of Assembly. 




Richard Sharpe Kissam, born in

1763, was educated for the medical profession at Edinburgh, Scotland, and

entered upon practice in New York in 1791. For thirty years he stood at the

head of the active members of his profession in the city, and until his death,

in 1822, he was regarded as one of the foremost surgeons of his time. From one

of his brothers Governor John T. Hoffman of New York was descended. It is

impossible to trace here all the ramifications of this family to the present

time. Its members have married into nearly all the old families of New York and

Long Island and it almost seems to us that a history of the various generations

would almost include the story of the legal and medical professions in

Manhattan from the beginning of the story of the United States. 




In Suffolk county the number of

old families which are still represented in every township is such that a

volume or two would be needed to present even the usual meagre details of

births, marriages and deaths, which form the genealogists' stock in trade.

Here, however, a few may be selected at random to illustrate all the rest. 




We may begin with a family whose

connection with Long Island has long since terminated, which was really

connected with it for a few years, genealogically speaking, yet some of the

credit of affiliation with it must be given to Suffolk county, because there

seems little doubt that when the most famous member of the family wrote the

heart-touching words of "Home, Sweet Home," it was the memory of the

interior of a little cottage in East Hampton that inspired the theme. 




John Howard Payne was born in New

York City, June 9, 1792. He was destined for a business career but early showed

a predilection for literature and the stage. He edited some trifling

publications while still in his teens, — publications now interesting only as

curiosities, — and in 1809 made his first professional career as an actor in

the old Park Theatre, New York, taking the part of Norval in Douglass' tragedy

of that name, a part which used to be the starting point in the career of every

budding Roscius. The play has long been relegated to the bookshelf and is never

now acted, but in the early part of the past century it was a prime favorite.

Payne's success in the part was most flattering and after playing it in many

American cities he repeated it in Drury Lane Theatre, London, with equal

commendation from the critics and the public. That success determined his

career and for some twenty years thereafter he was associated with the stage as

actor, manager and playwright. General James Grant Wilson writes: "While

living in London and Paris, where he was intimate with Washington Irving, Payne

wrote a host of dramas, chiefly adaptations from the French. In one of these,

'Clari; or, The Maid of Milan,' occurs his deathless song of 'Home, Sweet

Home,' which made the fortunes of all concerned, except the always unfortunate

author. By it alone, Payne will be remembered after his multitude of poems and

dramas have been forgotten, which, indeed, has almost happened already. His

tragedy of 'Brutus,' produced in 1818, with Edmund Kean in the principal part,

is his only dramatic composition that still holds possession of the stage, with

the single exception of 'Charles the Second,' the leading character in which

was a favorite with Charles Kemble." In 1832 the wanderer returned to

America, as. poor as when he left it, and pursued his theatrical career with

varying fortunes, generally brief bits of success mingled with long periods of

misfortune and poverty. Home he had none throughout his career since the death

of his mother when he was a lad of thirteen years, and it was destined that he

should die in exile from his native land. In 1841 he was appointed consul at

Tunis and there he resided until his death, in 1852. His body was interred in a

little cemetery on the shores of the Mediterranean until 1883, when it was

removed to Oak Hill cemetery, Washington, and so poor Payne was home at last.

His career was a sad one; poverty and he were close acquaintance's, he

"fattened on trouble and starvation," as he said himself, and he

often in later years told a story of the bitterness he once felt on hearing his

famous song sung one night in London when he himself was unable to raise the

price of a night's lodging and had to find a home in the streets. He made

plenty of money but had no idea of how to keep it, and a hit, when it was made,

only carried him and his friends — partners in his joys and often strangers to

his sorrows — through for a few days and then the weary round of misery was

faced again. The penalties of genius were never better illustrated than in the

sad career of this gifted singer. The genealogy of the Payne family has been

made a theme of special study by Mr. Henry Whittemore, and as much

misunderstanding exists concerning the poet's ancestors and even concerning his

birthplace, we give the record in full: 




Thomas Paine, the progenitor of

the family from which John Howard Payne descended, was the son of Thomas,

supposed to have come from Kent, England, and presumably identical with Thomas

Payne of Yarmouth, the first Deputy from that place to the Old Colony Court at

Plymouth in June, 1639. 




Thomas Paine (2), son of Thomas

(1), came to New England when a lad ten years of age, and settled in Eastham

before 1653, as he was constable there at that date. He was admitted freeman

1658. He represented Eastham at the Colony Court 1671-2-3, 1676-78-80-81, and

in 1690. He removed to Boston before 1695. He was a man of more than ordinary

education, and was a very fine penman. He died at Eastham August 16, 1706. He

married Mary Snow, daughter of Hon. Nicholas Snow, who came in the Anne to

Plymouth in 1623, and in 1654 removed to Eastham, Massachusetts. He married

Constance Hopkins, daughter of Stephen Hopkins, of Plymouth, fourteenth signer

of the "Mayflower Compact." 




The children of Thomas and Mary

(Snow) Paine were: Mary, Samuel, Thomas, Eleazer, Elisha, John, born March 14,

1660-1, Nicholas, James, Joseph, Dorcas. 




Deacon John Paine, sixth child of

Thomas (2) and Mary (Snow) Paine, was born in Eastham, Massachusetts, March 14,

1660-1. He was admitted freeman June, 1696. He was elected clerk of the town

1706 and reelected until 1729. He was Treasurer from 1709 to 1736, and

Representative to the General Court at Boston 1703-9-14-16-18-24-5. He was of a

literary turn of mind, and some of his spare moments were devoted to literary

pursuits. Scraps of prose and poetry written by him are still in the hands of

his descendants. He died October 26, 1731. 




He married first Bennet Freeman,

daughter of Major John and Mercy (Prence) Freeman, born March, 1671. She was

"a pleasant companion, a most loving and obedient wife, a tender and

compassionate mother, and a good Christian." By her he had John, Mary,

William, born June 6, 1695. Benjamin, Sarah, Elizabeth, Theophilus, Joseph,

Nathaniel, Rebecca, Mercy, Benjamin again. 




He married, 2nd, Alice Alayo. and

had by her Hannah, James, Thomas, Alice, Hannah. 




Lieut. William Paine, third child

of Deacon John and Bennet (Freeman) Paine, was born at Eastham, June 6, 1695.

He was a Representative to the Provincial Legislature from Eastham

1731-32-35-38-39-4043-44. He was appointed one of His Majesty's Justices in

1738. He took part with the Colonial forces in the capture of Louisbourg as

Lieutenant in Capt. Elisha Doane's company. Col. Gorham's Seventh Massachusetts

Regiment, and died in service in 1746. 




His first wife was Sarah Bacon,

of Barnstable, who he married in 1727. He married, 2nd, June 14, 1741,

Elizabeth Myrick, a widow, the daughter of Rev. Samuel Osborn, pastor of the

South Church in Eastham, and sister of Dr. John Osborn, the distinguished

physician and poetical writer of Middletown, Connecticut. By his first wife he

had Sarah, Ruth, Josiah, Jedediah. He had one child by his second wife,

William, born 1746. 




William Paine, or Payne, (2), son

of Lieut. William and Elizabeth (Myrick nee Osborn) Paine, was born in 1746,

the year his father died in the Colonial service. His mother remarried and he

was placed in the family of Rev. Joseph Crocker, pastor of the South

Congregational Church of Eastham. He commenced the study of medicine under Dr.

Joseph Warren, who fell at Bunker Hill. He was interrupted in his studies by

the events which immediately preceded the Revolution, and opened an English

Grammar School in Boston, but on account of the occupation of that city by the

British he gave it up and became a tutor in a private family. Writing to a

friend, of his experience at that time, he says: He was obliged to be in his

school "from the first entrance of light till nine in the evening."

While on a visit to Barnstable he married Lucy Taylor, who died shortly after

the marriage. He went to New London, Connecticut, and there engaged' in a

mercantile adventure to the West Indies. On his return he formed the

acquaintance of Miss Sarah Isaacs, of East Hampton, Long Island, who was on a

visit there, and soon after married her. Her father was a convert from the

Jewish faith, who came from Hamburg, Germany, previous to the Revolution, and

settled at East Hampton. He was a man of education and wealth, but difficulties

in his own country and the Revolution in his adopted country induced heavy

losses and left him comparatively poor. His wife, a Miss Hedges, was the

daughter of a lady whose maiden name was Talmage. His uncle Talmage was the

Earl of Dysart, a British nobleman. 




William Paine, or as he wrote his

name, "Payne," settled in East Hampton after his marriage, about

1780, and became one of the teachers of the academy there. His wife, who was a

woman of remarkable beauty, fine education and many excellent traits of

character, assisted her husband in teaching. Payne continued there for about

ten years. Several of his children were born there, and this was really the

only home he ever possessed. He removed to New York in 1790, where he taught

school for some years. In 1793 he resided at No. 5 Dey street, and he also

resided and taught school on Little Queen street. In 1799 he was invited by

some influential men in Boston to open a school there, which became quite

noted. He returned to New York about 1809 and taught school on Common near

Grand street. He died March 7, 1812. 




In the cemetery at East Hampton

is the grave marked by a stone of Andrew Isaacs, the father of William Payne's

wife, Sarah (Isaacs) Payne, on which is inscribed: "Behold an Israelite in

Whom is No Guile." 




William Payne by his wife Sarah

(Isaacs) Payne had issue: 




1. Lucy Taylor, born 1781. at

East Hampton, married, in 1816, Dr. John Cheever Osborne, of New York; died in

Brooklyn, 1865, left no issue. 




2. William Osborne, born at East

Hampton, August 4, 1783, died March 24, 1804. 




3. Sarah Isaacs, born at East

Hampton, July 11, 1785, died in New York. October 14, 1808. 




4. Eloise Richards, born at East

Hampton, March 12, 1787, died at Leicester, Massachusetts, July, 1819. 




5. Anna Beren Leagers, born at

East Hampton, April 9, 1789, died at Newport, Rhode Island, October 11, 1789. 




6. John Howard, the poet, born in

New York City, at 33 Pearl street, June 9, 1791, died at Tunis, Africa, April

9, 1852. 




7. Eliza Maria, born in New York

City, September 19, 1795, died there May 25, 1797. 




8. Thatcher Taylor, born in New

York City, August 14, 1796, married in New York, 1833, Mrs. Anna Elizabeth

Bailey, died in Brooklyn, December 27, 1863. 




9. Elizabeth Mary, born in

Boston, Massachusetts, died the-e aged about two years. 




The Scudder family, although not

among the original settlers of Suffolk county, might almost claim directly,

can, in some of its branches at least, claim descent by intermarriage with

every one of the historic families of which Suffolk is so justly proud. Then,

too, their own American pedigree commences at a date almost ranking with the

first. The American pioneer, Thomas Scudder, left Grafton, England, in 1636,

and settled at Salem, Massachusetts. He left three sons, Thomas, John and

Henry, all of whom in 1652 crossed over to Long Island and became residents of

Southold. After a while they all moved to Huntington township and acquired land

there. Then John removed to Newtown, where he resided until his death, about

1670. He left an only son, John, who married a daughter of Captain Richard

Betts. His two sons, John and Richard B., moved with their families to New

Jersey, and their descendants are there to be found even to the present day. 




Thomas and Henry Scudder may

therefore be regarded as the progenitors of the Scudders of Long Island. Thomas

seems to have had quite a land thirst and apparently invested all the money at

his command in real estate. At his death his holdings were divided, according

to his directions, between his two sons, all within the town of Huntington

going to the eldest, Benjamin; and tracts at Cow Harbor, Crab Meadow and

elsewhere, to the younger one, Timothy. There were five daughters in the family

but they seem to have been lost sight of in the distribution of the real

estate. Both of these fortunate brothers married and had families and soon the

mere records of the marriages and baptisms and deaths begin to tangle us up in

a maze, and, even if printed, would have no interest even for the family

themselves outside of a few of an antiquarian turn of mind. But there are

several names on the long and honorable record which deserve to be held in

general remembrance throughout Long Island, at any rate for their patriotic and

public services. 




Thomas , Scudder, son of

Benjamin, and third in descent from Thomas (1st) of Salem, died about 1760,

leaving only one son, also named Thomas, who in turn died in 1809, leaving four

sons, John, Nathaniel, Gilbert and Thomas. John joined the Continental army,

was taken prisoner at the battle of Long Island and confined with many others

in the old sugar house in New York City, where the cold and hunger occasioned

much sickness and many deaths among the prisoners. 




The old house of the Scudders at

Huntington Harbor, offering good quarters for the British officers, was

occupied by them, except the kitchen, where the family were forced to crowd

together, and the officer's horses occupied the barn and used the hay and grain

'Stored there, while the stock of Thomas Scudder was turned adrift in the

fields and streets. 




The sufferings of John as a

prisoner, coming to the ears of his father, caused the latter to send his son

Gilbert (then a lad of sixteen years) to New York to aid in his brother's

relief, which he accomplished by walking past the prison house several times a

day and when the chance offered passing food from his pocket to him, or to some

one for him, through the iron bars of a window bordering on a side street. This

assistance continued until he was liberated on parole; but the severity of

treatment the prisoners suffered and the injustice and rapine offered his

father's family in Huntington so embittered John's feelings against the rule of

Great Britain as to justify him, in his own opinion, in breaking his parole and

enlisting in General Greene's command in the Southern army, where before a year

had passed he died of yellow fever. Another Revolutionary hero belonging to the

family was Henry Scudder, who was of the fourth in descent from the Salem

pioneer. On the outbreak of the war he gave heart and hand to the cause of the

Revolution, promoted its development, held a commission in the army, and during

the seven years' war sacrificed all personal and family considerations for the

common cause of independence. He was captured at or shortly after the battle of

Long Island, but escaped confinement, passed over the sound to Connecticut, and

was attached to the force of General Tallmadge. During the seven years'

struggle be largely contributed by his local knowledge and great personal

daring to many successful expeditions against the British forces on Long Island

between Matinecock Point and Wading River, and came to be held by them as a

scourge whom they at once feared and watched for. His possessions at Crab Meadow

were laid waste by cutting his wood, burning his fences and outbuildings and

driving off all the stock (excepting one cow which was secreted by an old

slave), and his wife was subjected to a system of most distressing espionage in

order' to discover the presence of her husband on his stealthy visits to her.

To the courage of his wife and her sympathy with the cause of justice Henry

Scudder undoubtedly owed much in his cheerful self-denial and endurance of the

hardships occasioned by the long struggle for freedom. After the declaration of

independence he was chosen as one of the delegates from Suffolk county to aid

in the adoption of the Federal constitution. He represented the county in the

Assembly several terms and held other positions of honor and trust. Henry

Scudder died in 1822, leaving three sons. Youngs Prime Scudder, Henry Scudder

and Joel Scudder. He also had two daughters, the oldest Phebe, who married Azel

Lewis, and Amelia, married to Piatt Lewis. 




Several of the Scudder family

have been members of Congress. Tredwell Scudder represented Suffolk county in

the State Assembly for several terms and was elected a member of the fifteenth

Congress. For over twenty years he was prominent in public life. Henry Joel

Scudder was chosen to Congress in 1872 and declined a renomination. He was born

at Northport in 1825, graduated at Trinity College, Hartford, in 1846, and two

years later was admitted to the New York bar. He acquired a leading position in

his profession, and in 1881 the degree of LL. D. was conferred upon him by

Roanoke College. His career was distinguished by the interest he took in

educational matters and in schemes for improving the condition of the poor and

for his native town of Northport he was always thinking and planning some

scheme of improvement. His death in 1886 was deeply regretted by a wide circle

of devoted friends. His son, Townsend Scudder, afterwards represented Suffolk

and Nassau, etc., in Congress and proved a thoroughly practical and most

eminently useful member. 




The Huntting family is another

which has representatives all over the island, and, notably, in Suffolk. Their

progenitor, so far as their American story goes, was John Huntting, who in 1638

settled at Dedham, Massachusetts, from England. His grandson, the Rev.

Nathaniel Huntting, was minister of East Hampton for about half a century. He

had a family of six sons, and his grandson, Jonathan. Huntting, became minister

of Southold. In 1739 Samuel Huntting founded the Southampton branch of the

family. Colonel Benjamin Huntting, who was born in Southampton in 1754 and died

there in 1807, was one of the most enterprising merchants of his day. He was

one of the first to equip whaling vessels for long voyages and carried on a

large trade with the West Indies. The family have been merchants, lawyers and

fighters and are represented in nearly all the wars in which this country has

engaged. When the Civil War broke out E. F. Huntting of Southold volunteered

for the front and with a commission as lieutenant went forth to do what he

could to defend the flag. His career was a short but brilliant one; he was shot

at the head of his company and soon after the news was brought to Southold the

Rev. Dr. Epher Whitaker preached a notable sermon on the lessons of the young

hero's death which, as it deserves to be printed in some form likely to

preserve it, and as its deeply religious tone and moral musings and splendid

spirituality form an elevating change from most of what appears in this chapter,

we print it entire. It will be seen that it is more than a sermon; it is a

sketch both biographical and genealogical, with a lesson of deep import drawn

from the whole: 




"Here am I; send me."

Isa. vi, 8. 




Readiness for duty, however

dangerous burdensome and responsible, is the expression of this text; and it

would not be easy to find another more fit to indicate the character of that

young soldier, whose death we mourn and whose virtues we commemorate to-day. 




The Bible is not a book of life

and peace only. It is also, very largely, a volume of war and death. The songs

of Miriam and of Deborah are paeans of victory. Many of the psalms of David are

martial odes. His lamentation over Saul and Jonathan is the eulogy, and elegy

of battle-slain heroes. And the Bible abounds, throughout all its parts, in

language and illustration drawn from the science and art of war. This is the

case in the earlier as well as in the later ages of its history. The fine

figure which soldiers present in its latest books is specially remarkable. Here

some of them and there others, again .and again save the life of the chiefest

of the apostles, and afford him the means of spreading the gospel among the

nations. Others often hate and hurt him. Soldiers commonly treat him fairly and

kindly. 




But I have chosen no incident of

a soldier's life, nor any circumstance of a soldier's death, to indicate the

character of that heroic soldier, in whose honor we perform this service. Yet,

"Here am I; send me," are words full of martial decision, alacrity,

courage and manliness. 




These qualities and others of

Lieutenant Huntting will appear in the briefest sketch of his life and death. 




Edward Foster Huntting was born

May 22, 1843, in the home of his parents and paternal grandparents, in

Southold, and died in the service of his country, while commanding his company,

on the battle-field of Olustee, Florida, February 20, 1864, in the twenty-first

year of his age. 




He sprang from a long line of

worthy ancestors of the same family name. The earliest of the name in this

country was John Huntting, who came from England two hundred and twenty-five

years ago last September, and settled at Dedham, Massachusetts, where he died

April 12, 1682. His son, John, who married Elizabeth Payne, was a resident of

the same place, where his son Nathaniel was born November 15, 1675. This

Nathaniel Huntting, a graduate of Harvard College in 1693, began his life-long

ministry at Easthampton, in September, 1696, before he was twenty-one years of

age, and by his vigorous ministry there for more than half a century, he

prepared the way for the Rev. Samuel Buell, D. D., and the Rev. Lyman Beecher,

D. D., who were his next successors. Two of his sons and one of his grandsons,

having graduated at college and then studied theology, became ministers of the

gospel. The grandson was the Rev. Jonathan Huntting, who graduated at Yale

College in 1804, and was ordained and installed here on the 20th of August,

1807, the Rev. Drs. Woolworth and Beecher performing the chief parts of the

services. He fulfilled the duties of the pastoral office here twenty-one years

and one week; and his pastorate, under God, was the salvation of this church.

After he ceased to be the pastor, he retained his home in this place, and with

him, till his death, December 30, 1850, lived his son Edward, this bereaved

father, whose first-born child and only son is the subject of our thoughts

to-day. 




The brief service of an hour will

not permit me to make any specific mention of the wide spreading branches of

Lieutenant Huntting's maternal ancestry, whether through the Cases, the

Halseys, or others more remote from him. They are extensive and known to be

worthy of the regard due to his forefathers on the paternal side. 




It requires some acquaintance

with men to appreciate the full worth of such an ancestry. But its advantages

are none the less real. Apart from the virtue of blood, which is substantial

and operative, it gives the child of such parentage a material vantage ground

in the very first years of his life. It goes before him and prepares the way

for his reception of kindness, instruction, attention and manifold advantages

on every hand. It gives him the confidence of others, and makes many friends

for him even before his own merits have won them or deserved them. He is "beloved

for the fathers' sakes." This may aid him long after his ancestors are in

their graves. For many important purposes, the worth of his forefathers avails

him as if it were his own. The nature of human life and the structure of human

society make it as useful as it is unavoidable that parents and children should

share their advantages and disadvantages with each other. Every child feels

this connection of the parents and their offspring, even before he can fully

understand its nature or appreciate its great value; and he is a most unwise

and ungrateful son, who recklessly throws away all the substantial advantages

of honorable parentage, and chooses to fight the battle of life alone, and cut

his wav through the world friendless and unsupported. We honor those who make a

good name for themselves without this advantage': but we blame the man who

scorns the privileges of his own birthright. 




Even the childhood of Lieutenant

Huntting was marked by no folly of this kind. He was early mindful of the

advantages which his parentage gave him, and commendably obedient to parental

authority. The family is the foundation of human society. He felt unceasingly

its benign and mighty influence. The wishes of his parents were often contrary

to his boyish tendencies, his constitutional inclinations, and the customs of

many among his youthful associates, and in many a case of this kind it was

exceedingly interesting to mark the cheerfulness of his conformity to their

will. For instance, the entertainments of doubtful character, which they wished

him to forego, he often treated for their sakes as unattractive and worthless.

Thus he cheerfully rejected what would have pleased his social disposition, in

order to show his regard for their wishes. He was thus trained to faithfulness

in duty. 




The same deference to their

authority and regard for their comfort, which marked the course of his boyhood

and chiefly formed his character, also restrained him, I know not how long,

from giving himself to his country in arms. 




For many months before he

volunteered, the strong impulses of his ardent patriotism impelled him to this

step, but a life-long desire to promote the comfort of his parents and sisters,

held him back for a season. 




He was not aware that his talents

and training had fitted him for this service. His highest triumphs in school

were in the exact sciences; and I never saw him appear in a better light at any

time than in the splendor of an examination in certain branches of the higher

mathematics, which are closely connected with that precision of movement and

aim, and quick measurement of time and distance for which a soldier should be

fitted. 




His progress and excellence in

his academical studies were not more marked than his activity, agility,

strength and readiness in all athletic sports on the playground. But his

vigorous mental powers and superior physical endowments found not their chief

object in sports and pastime. As manhood drew on apace, the choicest athletic

games became less attractive than substantial, productive toil: and whether he

ploughed the fields of his father or performed some neighborly and generous act

for one in need of aid. the labors of his hands were cheerful industry, not

repulsive drudgery. Within these weeks of our mourning, since he met his early death

as a thorough soldier might wish to die, new anecdotes of his skill, efficiency

and generosity as a worker have been related to me in his praise. 




Thus in the life of the family,

in the studies and sports of good schools, both at home and abroad, in the

labors of the farm, and in the social activities, duties and charities of the

neighborhood, he had shown himself worthy of high regard. 




Full five years since he passed

the most critical portion of his youth; and the fears which some of his friends

then experienced for a short time, lest he should falter in virtue, were

happily and speedily done away. 




The approach of manhood both

matured and improved his character. The benign influences of the family and of

the church of God, in whose worship he was habitually active, were, through the

working of the divine Spirit, not without effect upon his higher powers. He

became more thoughtful, considerate, manly and gentle, and so acquired no

little decision of character. We saw it often, but will paint you to no more

than one instance. 




We shall not soon forget that

evening, the 18th of August, 1862, when his tall and shapely form was seen

advancing here to place his name, with his own right hand, upon the list of

volunteers for his country's army; and we knew him to be one who would never

shrink from his engagement, neglect his duty, nor turn his back to his

country's foe. His unselfish patriotism was not the kind to wear the badge of

meanness and infamy, and his heroic soul was not shaped and fashioned to receive

the brand of cowardice and shame. The multitude who then thronged this house of

God hailed his generous act with loud applause. But it was not so much the

acclamations of the enthusiastic spectators as the noble impulses of his own

spirit and the firm decision of his own mind, that filled his radiant eyes with

light, and spread a smile over his expressive countenance. Memory is faithful

to disclose even now the graceful dignity which he displayed among his worthy

companions who then, with him pledged their young manhood's prime and their

precious lives to the defense of our country against the lawless violence and

war of traitors. Dumb be our lips and dead be our hearts if we fail to honor

them, whether they live or die, for such generous and heroic devotion. 




It was no sudden freak of

Lieutenant Huntting that led him to lay down his life for his country. He

pondered the matter long and well before he gave himself to live or die for the

nation. Though his life had not reached a score of years, he had carefully

studied the history, the extent and the worth of the country and its national

government. He had marked the insurrection of traitors and had seen how they

had levied and begun war against their lawful rulers. He scorned their

sophistry, despised their selfishness, detested their oppression and defied

their warlike power. He counted not his life dear unto himself, to maintain his

country's rights and promote the general welfare. 




As soon, therefore, as

approaching manhood would justify it, and the national voice asked, "Who

will go for us?" his firm answer was ready, "Here am I; send

me." When he thus offered himself, he was not unaware that he gave perhaps

his life for his country. He was not unmindful of this fact in subsequent days.

Indeed, he desired to incur the danger and to fight the battles for which he

had volunteered to serve his country in arms. 




This was one reason why he

desired promotion and transfer from his place in the One Hundred and

Twenty-seventh Regiment to his lieutenancy in the Forty-seventh Regiment of New

York Volunteers. In the former regiment he had faithfully performed the duties

of a non-commissioned officer for more than a year in Maryland, Virginia and

South Carolina, on both sides of the Potomac, the James and the Nansemond rivers,

as well as on the coast islands of South Carolina; and though often in pursuit

of the enemy, yet never able to see more than his back or a line of his

pickets. This did not satisfy our young soldier. His patriotic aspirations

sought a more vigorous and decisive service of his country and hence it was a

real gratification to him, even at the expense of a separation from dear

companions of long and well-tried friendship, to be transferred to a

lieutenancy in the Forty-seventh Regiment, whose fortune it had been to see

more decisive service. Accordingly, in November last, he received his

commission in this regiment. 




It presented a fit occasion to

display the integrity and nobleness of his character. His commission was

presented to him with the promise, on his part, that he would forthwith report

himself to the commander of the regiment in which he had been commissioned. But

no sooner had he received his commission, than he was advised by senior

officers around him to do what is not uncommon in such cases, namely, pocket

the commission, and make a short visit home before reporting himself in the new

place according to his promise. But neither his strong desire to see his

parents and kindred and home friends once more, nor the example of many a one

among his brother officers, nor all other considerations combined with these

powerful motives could induce him to falsify his word, or swerve one line from

the path of integrity and honor. He would not burden his conscience with a

broken promise, even to lighten and gladden his heart with all the delights of

home, though he might see that beloved home and its unspeakably dear inmates

never more. This is virtue beyond the reach of mere heroism. It is virtue which

comes from Christian principle only. 




It was virtue too in one whose

heart craved the society of gentle souls with inextinguishable longing. This

yearning of his heart might be shown in many ways. Let one incident suffice. In

one of his cheerful, familiar letters, intended to be read only in the home of

his childhood, he writes, "I do not particularly dislike this kind of

life, but still it does not fill up the vacancy. The associations do not

exactly suit; and you may laugh, but I am more 'homesick' for good female

society than I ever was for anything else. I want something refining among all

this coarse, strong community of men who do and dare. I think sometimes, what

would I not give for an hour's talk with mother and sister. I never have been

homesick — never will he, so long as I have health in other respects; but I do

hunger for something refining, and softer than these surroundings of war, if I

am 'a man of blood.' I never told you of the risk I ran to have an hour's

conversation with an old lady and her daughter while in Virginia. They lived

outside the lines; but I took my gun and went out, determined to risk a fight

or capture for the sake of an hour's chat with the ladies. The old lady's name

was Warner, and I found herself and her niece both at home, but very much

surprised to see me, as they lived up among the mountains or 'up country,' as

they said. I told them just what I had come for, and hoped they would not be

offended. They invited me into the parlor, and I spent a very pleasant two

hours. The old lady's son was in the rebel army; but she was no partisan, and

said she hoped some Southern lady would talk to her son like a mother, for she

was sure he would need it. She was a member of the Episcopal church, a very

good, motherly old lady, and when I left she gave me some very good

advice." 




How clearly this incident

discloses the union of the tenderest sensibility with the manliest courage. It

prepares us to glance our eye at his modesty, which was equal to his merit in

other qualities. In a letter containing his photograph, sent to his oldest sister

"three months since, one of the two letters from his pen which I have had

opportunity to read, he wrote thus: "Is Eddie much changed, do you think?

When I look at him with my mind, and compare the untried boy. untaught in the

world's rough school, who left his island home fifteen months ago to fight the

battles of his country's flag, and shield that flag from the foul stain

traitors would put upon it, to the individual, half boy half man, who to-day

appears before me, I can see a great change in many respects. He has gained a

glimpse of the many and various pages of the text-book set before him in this

great school, and his opinions and feelings and whole mind have changed much.

But when, at the hour of twilight, he puts aside the present and outward world,

gives imagination free scope, and thinks of the loved ones who at that moment

are thinking and praying for the absent one, he is the same boy of fifteen

months ago, not a whit changed, still cheerful, still hopeful that the end will

soon come, and he be again united to that pleasant family circle which his

imagination correctly pictures." 




This mention of the twilight hour

is a beautiful intimation of his prayerfulness. It is the part of the day in

which he devoted a half hour to prayer in concert with his mother. His frequent

allusions to it in his letters, and his oft-repeated request that his mother

would not fail to observe it, show most clearly how highly he prized it. He was

mindful of the religious privileges and education which he had received from

his parents: and it would seem that he made a deep impression of his Christian

principle and rectitude upon the minds of his brother officers. 




This shines forth in the letter

of Lieutenant Smith, who wrote, with equal perspicuity and tenderness, the

particular circumstances of our young lieutenant's death. 




This letter is the most grateful

evidence that even in the last moments of his life, Lieutenant Huntting

maintained and disclosed, and even most fitly displayed some of those sterling

virtues which have come into view in the course of this sketch. 




Only four days after the battle,

and while yet in bivouac. Lieutenant Smith obtained the address of Lieutenant

Huntting's mother, and most generously and kindly wrote thus: 




"MY DEAR MADAM— It is with

feelings of deep sorrow that I communicate to you the news of the death of your

son, my esteemed friend. Second Lieutenant E. F. Huntting. He fell while

gallantly leading his company T,' in the battle of Olustee, on the afternoon of

last Saturday, February 20th. 




"A large number of the

original members of Company T had re-enlisted as veteran volunteers, and the

captain and first lieutenant had accompanied them home on furlough. So great

was the confidence reposed in Lieutenant Huntting by Col. Moore, that although

he was only a" junior officer, the colonel gave him the command of his

company. 




"Our mess on the march

consisted of Lieutenants Evry, Scott, Huntting and myself. While conversing

together over a cup of coffee, reference was, by chance, made to the

probabilities of some of us going down in the battle that we knew was soon to

take place. Your son's thoughts seemed to dwell particularly on home, and the

sad effect that anything serious or disastrous to him would cause in the family

circle. He mentioned you particularly as likely to be seriously affected,

should he be taken away. Alas for the uncertainty of human life! The early moon

that evening looked down serenely on the lifeless forms of two out of that

little group of four who were then so quietly talking over their future

prospects. 




"At a little after 8 A. M.

we were on the march. My company was first in line, Lieut. Every's next, and

Lieut. Huntting's third. We pushed on rapidly, and by 3 P. M. were supposed to

be within a mile of the town of Olustee, a distance of twenty miles. A smart

artillery fire, directly followed by the rattle of musketry, about half a mile

in advance, led us to suppose that the enemy had thrown out a small picket

force, which our cavalry were then engaged in driving in. Soon we were ordered

to form brigade line, and shortly afterwards we came into line of battle, our

regiment being on the left flank. Immediately the enemy commenced shelling us,

with good range on his part, so that we at once moved forward to engage him. In

a few moments we were hotly engaged. Your son — cool, calm, and deliberate in

every movement — cautioned his men to fire low, and bravely stood up facing the

deathstorm that raged about him. In a little while a rebel regiment moved forward

on the left and attempted to flank us. This drove back our left wing for a

time, leaving us who were on the right exposed to an enfilading fire. Our men

were falling rapidly, and the three right companies became somewhat massed

together. Lieut. Huntting deliberately walked back to the colonel, not

understanding what order had just been given, and inquired if he had any thing

for him to do. 'Just tell me what you want, colonel,' said he, 'and I will do

it.' The colonel answered that he, the lieutenant, was doing very well, and he

had no orders to communicate. Upon this Edward walked over to where I was

standing, and remarked that it was a pretty hot place. I answered in the

affirmative, at the same time showing him where the throat button of my

overcoat had been shot away by a rifle-ball. He then called upon the men to

'stand steady, aim low, and fire deliberately.' The words were scarce out of

his mouth, when he suddenly threw his right hand over the left breast, at the

same time covering it with his left forearm, and turning his face towards me,

remarked, 'I'm struck; don't leave me, Smith.' I made a motion to catch him in

my arms, but he reeled towards the right, and fell immediately on his right

side. Hastily calling two men to carry him to the rear, I knelt for a moment at

his side, heard him mutter something incoherently about 'mother,' 'heaven,' and

then the eyes closed, the limbs stiffened, and his pure unselfish spirit passed

away to be at rest forever. God grant that when my hour for departure from earth

and earthly joys and sorrows may come, I shall be found as well prepared as he

was. 




"My duties calling me to my

company, I ordered the men to carry him to the rear, not thinking but that we

should hold the ground, and be able to take care of our wounded and bury the

dead. In a few moments a heavy forced of the enemy was thrown forward to

capture a battery, and we were forced to fall back some distance. We never

recovered the ground, so that nothing of the personal effects on your son's

body were saved except his sabre. 




"I have written thus at

length, under many difficulties, knowing you would take a mournful interest in

everything relating to your so much loved son. Believe me, my dear madam, that

it has been a mournful subject for me to dwell upon, for your dear boy was a

cherished friend and companion of mine. Particularly since the opening of this

campaign we have been together night and day; and his singular openness of

heart, unselfish conduct, strict and unbending integrity, and thorough knowledge

of all of his duties as a soldier and an officer, had endeared him not only to

me, but to all his brother officers. By his men he was not only promptly

obeyed, but greatly respected. You well know that in the field an officer's

power over his inferiors extends even to life itself, but your son's men well

knew that while they travelled in the path of duty, they would be protected,

and always receive strict and impartial justice. His every action seemed to be

dictated by a spirit of true Christian responsibility. 




"It would not become me to

intrude upon your sorrows — me, who am so far behind your loved and lost one in

preparation for eternity — but may I not suggest, that his whole life was so

pure and guileless as to warrant us in saying that he is now rejoicing in the

presence of his Savior, where I trust you and I, and all of his and my friends

may someday join him. For one, I shall try to benefit by the example of my lost

friend, who, in a few months, took a place in my heart that will cause his

memory to remain there forever. 




"Wishing you every blessing

under this heart-rending bereavement, I remain, dear madam, your obedient

servant, 




"John A. Smith, First

Lieut., 




Commanding Co. G, 




47th Reg. K Y. Vols." 




Thus his comrade in arms and

battle tenderly tells us how nobly died our true, faithful, courageous young

lieutenant. How could a soldier find a more appropriate death? We mourn his

early fall, even though he died gloriously. For it is our grief that our ears

shall hear no more his sprightly footsteps and his cheerful voice; that our

eyes shall no more behold his tall and vigorous form. His brilliant eyes will

no more flash responsive to our looks of love. His dark glossy hair feels the

dampness of the grave, and the earth has hid those handsome, manly features

from our sight till the morning of the resurrection. 




He has finished his work on

earth. He will toil no more for his kindred and his country. He will die no

more for us all — for ns all. It remains for us to cherish his memory, to

emulate his virtues, and to receive the inspiration and the consolation which

properly come from his noble, unselfish life and his generous and courageous

death. 




His readiness for the most

burdensome and dangerous labors and exploits should animate us to perform our

respective duties with alacrity and faithfulness, and to bear our heaviest

burdens with fortitude and submission to God's holy will and providence. 




The example of good men, whether

old or young — whether in ancient times or in these days — should encourage us

to walk in the footsteps of the one perfect man, who was also God manifest in

the flesh, and who died for us all, that we through him might have forgiveness

of sins, and strong consolation in the deepest afflictions and sorrows. 




The grace of God in Christ Jesus

affords the best relief for the hearts that grieve over the bereavements of

earth. The father of all can make the severest anguish of his children work for

their future and eternal joy. To these bereaved kindred he can make the death

of their beloved one work a far more exceeding and eternal weight of glory than

all the fame and honors of the world. 




Oh may this mournful event

promote in them and in us all the proper preparation for death, judgment, and

heaven; so that whenever may come the hour of our departure from these earthly

scenes, we may each be ready to say unto God, "Here am I; send me." 




The foremost living historian of

Suffolk county and, indeed, the Nestor of its historical students, is Mr.

William S. Pelletreau. He has been and still is a diligent student of our old

records and has the happy faculty of making even the dryest of them tell an

interesting story. His recent work on Early New Yorks Wills, issued by the New

York Historical Society, and his volume on the Records of Southampton, are

cases in point, and in both there is hardly a page from which some detail of

general interest could not be gathered, and yet their local character is

thoroughly preserved. Both books received quite commendatory notices at the

hands of the critics of the country, while the long extracts which appeared in

the daily press showed the value placed on their contents. Mr. Pelletreau is

still closely studying the story of Suffolk county and every now and again hits

upon a discovery which is at once given to the world with the same honest

enthusiasm which Sir Walter Scott — the prince of antiquaries — used to announce

the literary and historical results of one of his tours to the Borderland or

the Highlands. 




The family to which Mr.

Pelletreau by his life work and his many brilliant talents has added additional

honor, has long been one of the most prominent in the county. He has sketched

its history so briefly and pithily that we here reproduce his own record: 




The ancestors of the Pelletreau

family were Huguenots who upon the revocation of the edict of Nantes fled from

France and sought safety and religious freedom in a foreign clime. The first of

the family in America were Jean Pelletreau and wife Magdalena, and their

nephews Jean and Elie, the latter having two sons, Jean and Elie (these names

were soon anglicized into John and Elias). These were direct descendants from

an ancestor who was physician to Admiral Coligny, and like his illustrious

patron perished in the massacre of Saint Bartholomew, August 23, 1572. King

Charles IX granted him a coat of arms July 17, 1571. The following is a

translation of the description: 




"Azure, upon a column in

pale or, encircled with a serpent proper, and bordered on the dexter and

sinister sides by a martlet, or; crest, a helmet." 




Jean 1st was naturalized in New

York September 22, 1687, and died in 1700. His wife Magdalena died in 1702,

without children. Jean 2nd died in 1703, childless. He and his brother Elie

were naturalized July 10, 1696. The native place of this family was the village

of Areas, in what is now the Department of Charente Inferieure. They were all

members of the French church in New York, and in their wills left funds toward

the support of its poor. Their names are found in connection with the troubles

in that church, as in favor of Rev. Lewis Row (see Documentary History of New

York, Vol. III). 




Elie Pelletreau died in 1730,

leaving sons Elias, Paul, Francis, John and Benjamin, and a daughter Magdalena.

Elias died before his father, leaving a wife, Elizabeth. John also died before

his father, and left daughters Mary and Elizabeth. Paul is supposed to have had

a son Elias," who had children Elias, Samuel, Mary and John. From the

first of these are descended the families now living in the city of Brooklyn.

Benjamin was the youngest son and is not known to have left descendants. 




Francis Pelletreau is said to have

been an infant at the time when the family left France in 1686. He came to

Southampton, L. I., in 1717. He married Jane, widow of Richard Osborn,

September 26, 1721, and by this marriage had two children — Mary, born November

30, 1723, and Elias, born May 31, 1726. His wife Jane died December 6, 1733,

aged thirty-eight. His second wife was Mary King, widow of Joseph King, of

SouthoId, and daughter of Judge Thomas Chatfield of East Hampton. She was born

September 12, 1707, and was married to Mr. King September 9, 1731. He died

while on a visit to his father-in-law at East Hampton, November 6, 1732, aged

twenty-five. Mrs. King married Francis Pelletreau September 4, 1734, and they

had children Hugh and Hannah, born in 1735. Francis Pelletreau was a merchant.

In 1728 he purchased the homestead of Samuel Woodruff in Southampton village,

and this place remained in the hands of his descendants until 1866, and is now

the residence of Josiah Foster. The old house remained standing till 1881; it

was the last house on Long Island that retained the old-fashioned rhomboidal

panes of glass set in lead, and from these it was known as "the house with

diamond windows." In 1737 Francis Pelletreau went to London to undergo a

surgical operation, and died from its effects September 26. His widow married

Judge Hugh Gelston, February 23, 1737, and died September 1, 1775. 




Mary, eldest child of Francis

Pelletreau, died July 6, 1736. Hugh died when a child. Hannah married Edward,

son of Rev. Silvanus White, in 1757, and died March 1, 1810. 




Elias Pelletreau married Sarah,

daughter of Judge Hugh Gelston, December 29, 1748, and had five children, viz.:

Jane, born May 13, 1750, married Judge Pliny Hillyer, of Simsbury, Conn., whose

descendants are now living in Westfield, Mass.; Francis, born May 15, 1752,

died September 29, 1765; Hugh born November 25, 1762, died July 30, 1771; John,

born July 29, 1755, died August 26, 1822; Elias, born August 29, 1757, died

October 10, 1831. 




The last named married Hannah,

daughter of Colonel Josiah Smith, of Moriches, August 7, 1782, and had

children: Francis, born May 




16, 1784; Elias Smith, born May

18. 1789, died September 30, 1821; Maltby, born March 23, 1791




Hannah Pelletreau, wife of Elias

2nd, died July 11, 1804, and he married Milicent Post, December 21 of the same

year, and by her had one son, Paul, who died when a child. 




Elias Smith Pelletreau married

Hannah, daughter of Oliver Smith, of Moriches, and had a son, Jesse Woodhull

Pelletreau, who died in 1878, leaving children Mary (wife of Hon. John S. Havens

of Moriches, Jessie and Legrand. 




Maltby married Jane Joralemon, of

New York, and left children William Upson, Maltby and Francis. 




Francis married Mary Conkling, of

Islip, and left children Henry and Cornelia; the latter married Rev. Ralph

Smith; the former died childless. 




Elias 2nd married Sarah Conkling,

daughter of Zebulon Conkling, of East Hampton, June 28, 1786. They had no

children. His wife Sarah died April 14, 1784, aged fifty-three. 




The descendants of John

Pelletreau, son of Elias 1st, were as follows: 




John married Mary, daughter of

Dr. William Smith, April 9, 1785, and had six children, viz.: William Smith,

born June 8, 1786, died March 15, 1842; Nathaniel, born September 18, 1787,

died January 5, 1823; Sarah, born July 19, 1789, died April 15, 1839; Charles,

born December 9, 1791, died February 24, 1863; Edwin, born January 11, 1795.

died 1840; John, born February 15, 1804, died December 2, 1817. Mary, wife of

John Pelletreau, died December 2, 1817, aged fifty-eight. 




William Smith, son of John

Pelletreau, married Nancy Mackey, daughter of David Mackey, May 23, 1810, and

had children: Albert died May 19, 1843, aged thirty-two; George died December

21, 1832, aged twenty; Jane married Lyman Lewis, of Westfield, Massachusetts:

Gilbert died in 1864: Alexander, born March 4, 1829, now in California; Mary

Gelston, wife of William Green. Prairie du Sac, Wisconsin; Frances, wife of

William L Mathews, Washington, Pennsylvania. 




Nancy, wife of William S.

Pelletreau, died April 22, 1832, aged 44, and he married Elizabeth, daughter of

Colonel Isaac Welles, of Westfield. Massachusetts, June 26, 1839, and had

children: Helen, now president of Pennsylvania Female College, Pittsburg,

Pennsylvania; William Smith (the historian), and George. Virginia City, Nevada.






Nathaniel, son of John, married

Harriet Crittenden, and bad children: Walter; Mary, wife of Daniel Jagger; and

Maria, wife of Albert Jagger. 




The Dering family, which for so

long was closely connected with the progress of Shelter Island, was descended

from Henry Dering, a native of Dorsetshire, England, who came to America in

1660. He became a merchant in Boston, and at the time of his death, in 1717,

was a member of the Governor's Council. His grandson, Thomas, settled on

Shelter Island, and as the husband of Mary Sylvester, heiress of Brinley

Sylvester, he was practically lord of the manor. In the time of the Revolution

he cast in his lot with the Continental Patriots, but after the result of the

battle of Brooklyn became known, deemed it prudent to retire to Connecticut

like so many Long Island Whigs too old to fight or not possessing fighting

qualities. He died in 1785, leaving two sons, Sylvester and Henry Packer, and a

daughter. Sylvester made his home on Shelter Island and did much to beautify it.

He was the first to introduce merino sheep into America and added considerably

to his wealth by the development of that stock. Having been appointed a

brigadier-general of militia, he became quite an authority on military matters

after his own notions like most of the old time "militia soldiers,"

and, like them, he was proud of his title and liked to be addressed as

"General" to the end of his life journey. He was supervisor of the

town of Shelter Island for many years, and in 1804 was elected a member of

Assembly. His death, on October 8, 1820, was the result of an accident. The

younger brother of this warrior-stock raiser, Henry Packer Dering, was

appointed collector of the port of Sag Harbor by President Washington, and was

one of the most honored of the business men of that place. He died in 1822. 




In Huntington Jonas Wood became

one of the first settlers and the ancestor of a long line of men and women who

were highly honored in that township and wherever the changes of life carried

them. The best known of them all, Silas Wood, has been called the first

historian of Long Island. He was born at West Hills, Huntington, September 14,

1769, and was educated at Princeton, where he was graduated in 1793. He seems

to have then studied law. Two years later he was elected to the Assembly, and

when his service at Albany was over he practiced as a lawyer in Huntington. In

1817 he was elected a member of Congress and served in that capacity for five

terms in succession. In 1828 he was defeated of re-election and retired to

private life. He died in 1847. His most noted work was his "Sketch of the

First Settlement of the Several Towns on Long Island," and a brief sketch

of the history of Huntington. It is said that during his last years he engaged

in a series of extended theological studies and wrote quite voluminously upon

religious matters. But as the end drew near he began to feel dissatisfied with

some of the opinions be had expressed and burned every line he had written. 




Several of the descendants of the

Rev. Joshua Hartt are still to be found in Huntington, and as he may be

regarded as the founder of the family and certainly as the most notable of the

name, we may here present a sketch of his extraordinary career, written by Mr.

Charles R. Street, the learned and painstaking annalist of Huntington: 




Joshua Hartt was born at Dix

Hills, near Huntington, September 17, 1738. He graduated from Princeton)

College, New Jersey, in 1770, and was ordained and installed pastor of the

Presbyterian Church at Smithtown, Long Island, April 29, 1774. He married

Abigail Howell, of Moriches, by whom he had ten children. After the Revolution

he went to Fresh Ponds, where he preached many years. During the Revolutionary

War his bold and uncompromising advocacy of the cause of his country caused him

to be arrested a number of times by the adherents of the king. Once he was

brought before the court martial held at Lloyd's Neck, but he was admonished

and discharged. He was soon after arrested, tried and committed to the jail in

New York City, where he remained from May 27. 1777, until October 25 of the

same year. During this imprisonment he came near dying from want and disease

brought on through cruel treatment by his jailer, the notorious Provost Marshal

Cunningham. Among his fellow prisoners was the celebrated Colonel Ethan Allen,

with whom he was on terms of intimate friendship, although their views of

spiritual matters were totally at variance, Allen being at the time an infidel.

While Mr. Hartt lay sick of a fever and his life was in danger Allen was active

in his attention to the wants of the sick man, and by his lively manner and

cheerful conversation did much to make his sickness and confinement endurable.

It was during Mr. Hartt's illness that Allen one day knelt down by his bedside

and made a most fervent prayer for his restoration to health. (See Onderdonk's

Annals.) Soon after this Mr. Hartt, probably by the influence of some Tory

friend, was released from prison upon parole, and when he was about leaving

Allen took him by the hand and said: "Good bye, Mr. Hartt; when you go

home tell your wife that while you were sick and nigh unto death, Ethan Allen,

a servant of the Most High God, prayed over you, and you recovered." 




Although released from prison, he

was not free from persecution. On one occasion while he was preaching in the

church at Smithtown Branch a bullet was fired at him, lodging in the wall just

above his head, where the mark remained for many years. For some time after the

return of peace in 1783 Mr. Hartt was engaged with others in making surveys of

the state lands in the neighborhood of Whitestown, Oneida county, New York. In

1790 he and Rev. Nathan Kerr were appointed missionaries by the Presbyterian

General Assembly. They visited Whitestown, Cherry Valley and the Indian tribes

of that vicinity. Their route was then regarded as in the far west. 




During the war between this

country and England in 1812 Mr. Hartt took strong ground in favor of sustaining

the government in its efforts to punish Great Britain for her insolent

treatment of our rights upon the seas. He preached several sermons in which he

vindicated the acts of the government in declaring war, and in which he set

forth the necessity of a hearty support of the government while prosecuting the

same. These sermons were printed in pamphlet form, and were extensively

circulated, several copies being still, preserved. 




The Howell family was formerly a

prominent factor in the business affairs of Southampton. Captain Stephen Howell

was born in the good old town in 1744, and died there in 1828, was one of the

first to erect a storehouse in the village. He was a stanch patriot in the

Revolution and fought in the battle of Brooklyn, seemingly ending, however, in

that disastrous engagement, his military career. In 1785 he became prominent in

the whale fishery business and he and his sons, Lewis and Silas, made

considerable money rapidly. Latham may also be regarded as the founder of Sag

Harbor's industries, he having established there a candle-making factory.

Although he was a man of many progressive ideas and of shrewd business

instincts and his endeavors added greatly to Southampton's prosperity. 




A family named Miller was long

prominent in East Hampton. They were descended from John Miller, one of the

first settlers. In 1717, Eleazer Miller, the grandson of this pioneer, was born

and developed into quite a famous character. He was elected a member of the

Assembly in 1748 and continued to hold the office for twenty-one years, when,

in 1769, after a warmly contested election he was defeated by no less a

personage than Gen. Nathaniel Woodhull. Eleazer's son, Burnet, was clerk of

Huntington for many years, served in the Assembly and in Congress and was

supervisor for eleven years prior to 1776. He seems to have been lost sight of

in the course of the Revolutionary war, probably removed to some place up the

Hudson. 




Hubbard Latham, of Connecticut,

settled in Southampton in 1760 and was for many years one of its most active

citizens. He was a dealer in real estate as well as a speculator in marline

ventures and gathered together quite a fortune. He left a large family which is

still represented in the village. 




The Rose family, still

represented in North Sea, Southampton, are descended from Robert Rose, who

settled in the township in 1644. 




Judge H. P. Hedger wrote the

following interesting sketch of the career of a member of this family who

attained high judicial honors: 




Judge Abraham T. Rose, son of Dr.

Samuel H. Rose, was born in Bridgehampton, in 1792, and died April 29, 1857. He

graduated at Yale College in 1814, and became a successful practicing lawyer,

residing through life in his native village. He was county judge and surrogate

of Suffolk county from July, 1847, to January, 1852, and from January, 1856,

until his resignation, in the month wherein he died. In 1848 he was an elector

to choose a president of the United States. 




He was a man of varied and almost

universal genius, of generous and kindly impulse, poetic temperament and

magnetic eloquence; where others by slow and laborious effort achieved the

mastery he by intuition looked through the complication of mechanics, science,

literature, music and the practical arts. Hosts of ardent friends admired,

loved and served him; crowds thronged the place where and when he was expected

to speak. Fluent in expression, graceful and commanding in gesture and action,

fertile in fancy and invention, versed in all the springs of human nature,

winning and persuasive in manner, his presence was a poem and his speech was

music. Almost at will he carried courts, jurors, witnesses and crowds to his

own conclusions, and in his own inimitable way. One of his contemporaries

remarked that industrious application would, make a good lawyer, but only

genius like his would make a man an advocate. Unquestionably as an advocate and

orator he was of the highest rank in his time. 




When the dark shadow of the

inevitable hour gathered around him, professing his undoubting faith in Jesus

Christ, and regret and repentance for errors past, he was received on the

Sabbath in the church at his residence, and partook of the sacramental elements

at the hands of the elders. When his malady obstructed his wonderful and

attractive utterances he commended to us the 116th Psalm as expressing his

experience and undying hope. The tramping feet of the living thousands may move

on unconscious of the memory of the other thousands gone before; yet age after

age the remembrance of this gifted man, of his wonderful eloquence and his

generous heart, will live in the traditions of generations to come, transmitted

by those who have gone as he has gone. 




These random notes and delvings

into the family history "out on Long Island" must here close. We have

lingered with the subject lovingly and reverently so as to bring out the

characteristics of each and in most cases their special claim to remembrance,

but the subject might be indefinitely extended, for such families as the

Mulfords, the Hewletts, the Daytons, the Brewsters, the regiment of Smiths, and

a host of others are at hand — enough to fill many volumes. But we desire to

close this chapter with a biographical sketch of a man who was for years a

tireless student of Long Island genealogy and whose works are a delight to the

antiquary and an inspiration to the historian — Teunis G. Bergen, of Bay Ridge.

This sketch was written by his life-long friend. Dr. Stiles, the historian of

Brooklyn. 




Teunis G. Bergen, farmer,

statesman and antiquary, was born in the town of New Utrecht, October 6, 1806.

He was the eldest child of Garret Bergen and Jane Wyckoff, his wife. He clearly

traced his ancestry to Hans Hansen Bergen, a native of Bergen, in Norway, who

came over to the New Netherlands with Wouter Van Tweller, the second director

of the colony. Bergen's wife, whom he married in 1639, was Sarah, the daughter

of the Walloon emigrant, Jan Joris Rapalye, who came to this country in the

ship Unity in 1623 and settled in Albany, afterwards removing to New Amsterdam,

and thence (1635) to the Waleboght on Long Island. Sarah was herself a historic

character, being the first white female child born within the limits of the

present state of New York — at Albany. Thus, from a stock not originally of the

Netherland blood, but which became afterwards thoroughly incorporated with the

first Dutch settlers of this county, sprang this most distinguished Dutch

scholar. His early youth was mainly spent between work upon his father's farm

at Gowanus, and at the common school of the district. As youth merged into

manhood, he applied himself to the study and practice of surveying, in which he

soon became proficient. To the main duties of an active life he added those of

a farmer; and, not forgetting those he owed to the community in which he

resided, he faithfully discharged such as were imposed upon him by the choice

of his fellow-citizens, as soldier, civilian and statesman. He held the

position of Ensign, Captain, Adjutant, Lieut. Colonel in the militia; and,

finally, that of Colonel of the 241st Regiment, N. Y. S. N. G. He was

supervisor of the town of New Utrecht for twenty-three years in succession

(April, 1836, to April, 1859); and from 1842 to 1846 was chairman of the board.

He was a member of the Constitutional State Conventions in 1846, 1867 and 1868,

and was repeatedly a member of the Democratic state conventions. He was a

delegate to the national Democratic Convention held at Charleston, S. C, in

1860, and vigorously opposed the resolutions Oi that body which caused the

breach between the northern and southern Democratic party. The last and most

notable public office which ho held by the choice of his fellow citizens was

that of representative in Congress from the Second Congressional District, in

1864, when he was elected by a majority of 4,800 over his opponent, the

"Union" candidate. In that session of the House of Representatives

his party was in the minority; but, true to his Dutch principles, he stood firm

to his party to the completion of his term of service. The pages of the history

of the county of Kings bear frequent witness to Mr. Bergen's many public

services in behalf of the interests of the county and of its several towns, as

well as of the city of Brooklyn. That he was so frequently called upon, in

these public affairs, was a most striking tribute to his ability, industry and

integrity. 




On his retirement from public and

professional duties, he devoted his leisure hours to those antiquarian and

genealogical investigations which possessed, for him, so great a fascination.

These investigations ran most naturally in the lines of Dutch (and Kings County

Dutch) ancestry and history. In the earlier years of his life, spent among the

hills and by the waterside at Gowanus, and at New Utrecht, be knew no language

but the Dutch — not as spoken nowadays, but with the idiom and pronunciation of

two hundred years ago — and corrupted, in a measure, by the gradual

introduction of the English. By education, he soon became versed in the English

language; but he never ceased to cultivate the language of his boyhood, which

he lived to see almost eradicated, in this county, as a spoken language. It

sometimes seemed to his friends as though he thought in Dutch, but spoke in

English: and there was always a certain peculiar accent to his pronunciation,

especially when a little excited, as if both tongues wrestled at his lips for

precedence. By birth, and education and study be was admirably qualified to

decipher the Dutch records, both public and private, which he frequently had

occasion to consult. His pure character and great experience as a land-surveyor

in the settling of town boundaries and private estate-lines among the old Dutch

families of the county, also gave him access to many ancient documents and

sources of information which would have been closed to any other person. So

that he early became an expert in all that related to the Dutch and their

descendants, not only in the county, but upon Long Island and even in New

Jersey. In the history of the Dutch families of Long Island he was not only

(with the exception of Riker) the first gleaner, but be was by far the most

thorough, exhaustive and authoritative. His untiring and self-sacrificing

researches into the almost obsolete records of the ancient Dutch churches of

Long Island and New York have unearthed numerous and important materials for

the use of modern historians; while his discoveries, in out-of-the-way places,

of many of the detached birth, baptismal and marriage records, and the

restoration of the same, have conferred inestimable benefits upon the

genealogist and antiquary. His published writings were numerous and important.

Scattered through the volumes of the New York Genealogical and Biographical

Record will be found valuable papers on Records of Births of the Society of

Friends, Gravesend, L. I., commencing 1665; the Van Dyke Family; Marriage Records

of Gravesend, commencing 1664; a List of Deaths in Captain Grant's company in

1762 the Montfoort Family; Pioneers of the Revolutionary War; the Martense

Family; Contributions to the History of the First Settlers of Kings county;

Memorials of Francays D' Bruynne; the Van Duyn Family. Some of these formed

portions of "A Register of the Early Settlers and Freeholders of Kings

county, X. Y., from its First Settlement by Europeans to 1700, with

Biographical Notices and Family Genealogies," which was published in 1881,

a few weeks after his death. Before this, however, in 1866, he had issued

"The Bergen Family," an octavo of 298 pages; in 1867, the history of

his wife's ancestry, "Genealogy of the Van Brunt Family," in 80

octavo pages. But the crowning glory of his well-spent life, so far as family

history is concerned, was a second edition of his "Bergen Family," so

improved and augmented as to embrace, by regular descent and intermarriage, a

large portion of the Dutch population of southern New York and eastern New

Jersey; forming a handsome illustrated volume of 658 octavo pages. In 1878

appeared his "Genealogy of the Lefferts Family," 1675-1878, an octavo

of 172 pages. In 1877, also, at the 200th anniversary celebration of the

Reformed Dutch church of New Utrecht, be delivered an "Address on the

Annals of New Utrecht," of great historic value; and which was printed for

private circulation by the consistory of the church. He left, also, in

manuscript, "A History of New Utrecht," which antiquarians are hoping

to see issued, in due time, by competent hands. He left, moreover, translations

of several important manuscripts relating to Kings county matters. 
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